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Notice

Motice is heraby given that the 38t [Thirty-Ninth) Annual General Meeting{’AGM') of the members of
KAMINI FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMPANY LTD (‘the Company’) will be held on Thursday,
August 28, 2025 at 09:00 a.m. at the registered office of the Company at 1% Floor, Room Mo. 5, HM
Market, TR Phookan Road, Guwahati-7TB1001 fo transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025 together with the Repars of the Board of Directors and Auditors therean

2. To appoint & director in place of Mr. Chand Ratan Modi {DIN: 0034.3685), who retires by rotation and being
eligibie, offers herself for re-appaintmant.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Re-appointment of Mr. Mohit Parakh (DIN: 02033194} as an Independent Director of the Company for
a second term of 5§ consecutive years,

To consider and if thought fit, ko pass the foliowing resolution as a Special Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 & 152 read with Scheduls IV and other
applicable provisions, i any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules made thereunder, Regulation 16{1)(b) of
the Securlies and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obbgations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 {including any statufory modification(s) or reenaciment{s) thereof for the time being in force) and the
Aricles of Association of the Company and pursuant to the recommandation of the Nomination and
Rermuneration Commites and Board of Directors, the approval of the Members of the Company be and s
heraty aceorded for the re-appointment of Mr. Mohil Parakh (DIN: 02033154), for & second tesm of 5 (Five)
conseculive years commencing from the conclsion of this AGM Bl the 44% AGM of the Company in respact
of whom the Company has recelved a nofice in writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Companies
Ao, 2013, proposing his candidature for the office of Director, &5 an Independent Director of the Company,
rol lable 1o redire By rotation.”




4. Appointment of Mis. Mankani & Associates, Company Secretaries (Firm Registration Number —
S2018UPE13300) as Secretarial Auditors of the Compamy

Toconsidar and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Crdinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 204 and 179(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Persannel) Rules, 2014 framed
theszunder, Requlation 24A of SEB! (Listing Cbligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regufations, 2015
lirchuding any statutory modification(s), re-enactment thereof for ime being in foree) and circulars issued
thereunder from time to fime, approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for
the appointment of Mis. Mankani & Associates, Company Secrefaries (Firm Registration Number —
52018UPE13300) as the Secretarial Auditors for the Company, to hold office for a term of five consecutive
years i.e. from financia year 2025-26 to financial year 2029-30, on such remuneration as may be mutually
areed between the Board of Directors and the Secretarial Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or any duly constituted Committee of the Board, be and =
hereby authonised fo do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary andior
expedient in connection therewith or incidental thereto, to give effect fo the foregoing resolution ”

By order of the Board of Direclors,

-e—-_h—""-l_-'“:-_h.k"' S

RN
Chand Ratan Modi
Managing Director
DIN: 003436835

Date: 16.05.2025
Place: Kolkata




NOTES:

1

The relevant Explanatory Staternent pursuant to Section 102 of the Act and Rules framed thareunder, in
mespect of the Special Business o be transacied during the mesiing i enclosed herewith and marked as
Annexure:l, Tha recommendation of the Board of Direciors of the Company in terms of Regulaton 17(11) of
the Listing Regulations is also provided in the said Statement

The infarmation a5 required under Regulafion J6[3} of the Listing Regulations and the Sacretanal Slandard
on General Meetings {55-2), Bsued by the Institule of Company Secretanes of India, refaling 10 the business
ffem Mo, 2 & 3 s enciosed herewith and marked as Annexure-Il.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, 8 member entitied to attend and vole at the AGM is enfitled to appoint &
proxy o sttend and vola on hisfher behalf & praxy meed not be a member of the company. The proxy in order
to be efiective should be duly stemped, compleled and signed and must be deposited at the regisiered ofiice
of the company nof less than 48 hours bafara the tme for halding tha masting.

In terms of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thersunder, a person can act as proxy
on behalf of Members not exceading fifty (50) and holding In the aggregate not mone than 10% of the total
ehare capital of the Company carmying woling rights. In case a proxy & proposed (o be appointed by & Member
holding mara than 10% of the lotal share capital of the Company carrying vating rights, then such proxy shall
not.act 25 a proxy for any other person or Member.

Corporate members infending to attend the Maatng are requastad to sand 1o the Company pursuant to the
provisions of Section 113 of the Act, a duly cerified true copy of the Board Resolution/ Power of Altorney
authorizing their represantative(s) 1o attand and vola on thei behalf at the Mesting

In casa of pint holders atiending the meefing, only sech joint holder whe ks higher in the order of names will
be enfified b vola,

The notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to the members, whose names appear in the register of
members / deposdories as at clasing hours of business, on July 25, 2025,

Investars who became members of tha Company subsequeant 1o the dispalch of the Notics | Emall and holds
the shares ag on the cut-off date ie. August 21, 2025 are requestad to send the email communication ko the
Company at kficl1 7@mgmail.com and io the RTA at nichetechpliffnichetachgl com by mentioning their Folio
Mo, [ DP (D and Client 1D o oblain the Login-lD and Password for e-voling

The vating nghts of sharsholders shall be in proportion to their shases of the paid-up equily share capital of
the Company as on the cud-0ff date i.e, August 21, 2025, A person who ig not a mamber 25 on cut-off dala
should treat this notice for information purposs only,

The shareholdars shall have one vole per equily share held by them.as on the cul-off date of August 21, 2025,
The facillty of e-voling would be provided once for every folic [ client id, irespective of the number of joint
halders.

Mambers holding shares in physcal form ane advised 1o file nominations i Torm SH-13 in respect of thair
sharehokding in the Company, if not already registered and fo submit the same to the BETA. The nomination

. The Register of Mambers of the Company will reman closed from August 22, 2025 lo August 28, 2025 (both
days inclusiva) for the purpese of Annual General Meeting.

g




12, The Register of Directors and Key Manragenal Pessonnel and thair shareholding maintaned under Sechon
170 of the Companies Act, and the Register of Confracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested,
maintained undar Section 183 of tha Act, shall be available for inspaction by the Members duning the AGM by
sending an email o kficl1 Tilgmail.com.

All documents referred to in the Notice and the Explanatary Staterment shall also be available for mspection
without any fee by the Members from the date of circulation of thiz Motice up o the date of AGM, Lo Thursday,
August 28, 2025 at 09:00 a.m

Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an e-mail to kiicli7i@amail.com_mentioning thair
names, PAN, folic numbars | demat account numbers and contact numbers

13. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular daled May 12, 2020 and further circulars and
nolification issued i e context matter by MCA, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 is
being sent only through electranic mode 1o those Members whose email addresses are registered with the
company -:'Jepcns'rb:lrias Meml:rers may note Ihatﬂ'm Motice and .ﬂ-nnual Report 2024-25 will alzo be a'.lailahla

Metropolitan Sh:}ch Exchange l:lf Ii‘b:fm UI‘I‘I.H.EIZI [MEEI}

. Any member desirous of cbiaining hard copy of the sad Nolice along with Be Annual Repod for the financial
year anded March 31, 2025 may send a reguest to the Company at kiici17i@gmail.com, through his | her
ragistered a-mail address, mentioning his / her name, PAN, folio numbers [ demat acoount numbers and
contact number,

. For receiving all communication {including Annual Report) from the Company electronically:

a) Members holding shares i physical mode and who have not registered / updated their email address
with the Company are requested o register / update the same by writing o the Comgany with dedails of
folio number and atlaching & sef-atiested copy of PAN card at kfclP@gmail.com or o BTA at
nichetechpl@@nichetechpl.com

Mambears holding shares in dematerialised mode are requesied to register / update their email addresses
with the relevant Depasitory Padicipant.

16. Mambers ara requastad b

a) infimate to the Secretanal Deparment | Company's Registrar and Transfer Agent, Miche
Technobogles Pt Lid., changes, If any, pertaining 1o their name, postal address with PIN, e-mai
address, ielephone | mobik numbers, Permanent Sccount Mumber (PAN) defails linked with
Aadhaar, signature, mandates, nominafions, pawer of atlorney, bank details such as, name of the
bank and branch datails, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, ete. in prascrbed Form 1SE-
1 and other forms (available on the Company’s websie at hiips:iwaw kficl.comy in terms of SEBI
Master Circular No. SEBVHOMIRSDIPOD- /PICIRI2024/37 dated May 07, 2024 and SEBI Circular
No. SEBIIHOMIRSDIPOD-1/PICIR2024/81 dated Juna 10, 2024, in casa of shares held in physical
farm and

infimaie fo the mspeclive Depository Participant, changes; if any, partaining to their name, postal
address, e-mail address, telephone / mobile numbers, Permanent Account Mumber (PAN),
mandates, nominations, power of atiomey, bank detalls such as, name of the bank and branch
details, bank account member, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., in case of shares held in demaierialized
frm




17, Inaccordance with Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Gircular Mo, SEBIHO/MIRSDMIESD-
PoD/FICIRIZ023037T dated March 16, 2023, the facility for making namination |s available for the Members in
respact of the shares meld by therm. Members are requested fo submit the said defssls to RTA in case the
ghares are held in physical form and fo their respective DP in case the shares are held by them m
damatadalzed form.

. Pracedure for reqstration as speakers | seak clarification:

a) Members willing fo express their views or ask questons during the AGM ara required lo register
themzales as speakers by sending their reqguesis, preferably from Wednesday, August 20, 2025 {10:00
a.m. IST) to Monday, August 25, 2025 (5:00 p.m. I15T), at kfich 7@ amail com from their registered -mad
addrasses, manboning their namas, folio numbers | demaf account numbars, FAN detailz and mobie
nurnbers. Only those Members who have registered themselves as speakers will be allowed o express
their views [ ask questions during the AGM. The Company | the Chairrman of the Meeling reserves the
fight o regtrict tha number of questions, time allottad and number of speakers 1o ensure smooth conduct
of the AL,

Any Member desinous of receiving any informafion on the Financial Sisterments or Operations of the
Company is requested fo forward his / her query(ies] to the Company through e-mad at
wficd 7 Egmail com, mentioning his | har name, folio numbers | demat account numbaers, e-mail addresses
and mabile numbers, at least seven working days prior fo the AGM, 5o thal the required information can
be made available during the AGM.

. As par Regulation 12 of the Listing Regulations read with Scheduls - | 1o the said Regulations, it i mandatory
for all the Companies to use bank details fumshed by the mvestors for disinbuting dividends, interests,
redemption or repayment amounts o them through Mational ¢ Regional / Local Blectrenic Clearing Services
[ECS] or Real Time Gross Setilement [RTGE) or Mafional Blectronic Funds Transier (MEFT), Mational
Automated Cleanng House (NACH) wheraver ECS | RTGS /T NEFT / NACH and bank detsls are available. In
the absence of electronic facility, Companias are requined to mandatorily print bank defails of the investors on
‘payable-gt par' warrants, cheques or demand draft for distnbution of Dividends or other cash benefits fo the
investors, In addition bo that, if bank delails of inveslors are notb available, Companies shall mandatanly print
the address of the investor on such payment insfruments

Therefore, Members holding shares in physical mode, if any, are requested 10 updale their bank details with
the Company or RTA immediately. Membars halding shares in demal mode are requestad fo record tha ECS
miandate with their OPs concermned.

. SEBI vida Itz Circutar Mo, SEBHOMIREDMIRSD RTAMB/PICIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 has
mandated the Ested companies to issue securites in dematerialized form only while processing senvice
requests viz. issue of dupbcate sscuribies cerificate; claim from unclamed suspense account, ranewal /
gxchange of securities cerfificate; endorsement; sub-division | spiifting of securilies certificale; consolidation
of secunties cerificates! folos; transmission and fransposition

Accordingly. Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form
I5R-4, the farmal of which & available on the Company's website at hilpswens kit com and on the RTA's
wibsie at hips:inichetechploom. It may be noted that any service reguest can be processed only afler the
folio is KYC Compliant.

In view of this, members hodding shares in physical form,  any, are requested fo consider converting their
hokdings to demaleriaized form, Members can contact the Company or RTA in this regard.




To suppert the "Green Inliative’, Members who have nol regstered their e-mal addresses so far, am
requeasad to negister their a-mail address for recaiving all communication inciuding Annual Repor, Nofices
and Circulars etc. from the Company electronically

. Members are requested to quote the ledger folio / DF 1D m all communication with the Company.,

. A Route Map showing directions fo reach to the venue of the AGM of the Company is given at the end of this

Mofice as per the requirement of the Secrefanal Standand on Ganeral Meetings.

. Voling through electronic means:

a) Az per the provisions of 3ection 108 and other applcable provisions, if any, of the Act, Rule 20 of the
Companies {Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and amendments theralo, read with the MCA
Caculars, the Secrelaral Standard on General Meebngs [(55-2) mswed by the Insiitule of Company
Sacretaries of India and Requlation 44 of the Listing Regulations, the Company is pleased o facilitate s
Members o transact business of the AGM of the Company by voting through alectronic means. For this,
the Company has engaged e services of CDSL having office at A Wing, 3435 Floor, Marathon Futunes,
Mafadlal M Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Pansl {East), Mumbai - 400013, fo provide remobe e-
voling services and e-voling faciity during the AGM, who are holding the shares as on the cul-off data.

The remote e-voting period commences at 900 am. 15T an Monday, August 25, 2025 and ands at 5:00
p.m. 15T on Wednesday, August 27, 2025, Durng this period, the Members of the Company, holding
shares alther in physical or dematenalized mode, as on the cut-0ff date i.g., Thursday, August 21, 2025
may cast fheir vote by remobe e-voling, The remote e-valing module shall be disabled by COSL for valing
thersafier. Once the vole on a resolution i cast by the Member, the Member shall not be allowsd to

change it subzequently.

The Facility for voling hrough electrons means shall be made available during the AGM and the Members
attending the AGM who hawe not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall ba able 10 exercise thair right
during the AGM through electronic voling sysiem. Howaver, Members who have cast their vote by remate
e-voting prior 1o the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be entitied to cast their vote again

d)  The ingfructions to cast votes through remode e-woling and through e-woling system dunng the AGM is
enclosed herewith and marked a3 Annexure-lll and the same shall form part of this Motice,

. Imorder fo scrulinize the e-valing process in a fair and ransparent manner, Ms. Priva Mankani (ACS - 34744,

27,
LA,

CP Mo, 17947) of Ms, Mankani & Associales, Company Secretaries, Kolkata, has been appainted by the
Board of Derectars of the Company as the: Scrutinizer.

The Scrufinizer shali, immediately afer the conclusion of voling af the AGM, first count the voles cast al the
Mesting and thereafter unblock the voles cast through remote e-Voting in the presence of at least two
witnaszes, not in the employment of the Company and make a consolidated Scrufinzer's Report of the todal
wotes cast in favour or against, if any, not later than 3 {Three) days of conclusion of the AGM ar within 2 (Twa)
warking days of conclusion of the AGM, whichevar is earier, The Scrutinizer thereafier shall submit the said
Feport to the Thairman or & persen authonzed by him in writing who shall countersign the same and declare
within the stipulatad time, the results of the voting fortiwith. The resolution(s) shall ba deemad fo be passed
o the date of the AGM, subject 1o recaipt of requisite number of yoles

The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Repon shall be placed on the website of the Company
hitps:fewe sficlcom' and on the wabsite of COSEL iImmediately after the results are dectarad by the Chasrman

of & person authorised by him in writing. The same shall be communicated by the Company fo the stock exchange,




Annexunes]

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ltam Mo, 3

Mr. Mohit Parakh, Independent Director had been appointed by the Members at the 340 Annual General
Maating held on September 28, 2020 for a term of § (Five) consecufive years from July 30, 2020 till the
conclusion of the 38 AGM of the Company. Basad on rich axpanenca, professional skil, knowladga,
continued valuable guidance ko the managemeni and the coniributions made by Mr. Parakh during his
association with the Company and atso on the basis of his performance evaluation, the Board of Directors of
the Company has, on e recommendation of the Nomination and Remunaration Committes, considered it
desirable that it shall be in the interest of the Company to confinue 1o avail the sanvicas of Mr. Parakh, as an
Independant Director of the Company.

Further, in the opinion of the Board, Mr. Parakh fulfils the conditions epecified in the Act read with Schedule
I bo the Act and Rules mads hereunder and alzo under the Lizting Regulations for re-appointment as an
Independant Director of the Company. Mr. Mohit Parakh is indepandent of the Managemsnt of the Company.
It i5 thersfore proposed to re-appoint him as an Independent Director of the Company, to hold office for a
second term of 5 (Five) conseculive years, commencing from the conclesion of this AGM il the 440 AGM of
the Company, with & penod of office not liable to retire by rotation. The details of Mr. Parakh are provided in
the Annaxura-ll 1o the Notice pursuand bo the provisions of the Listing Regulations and Secrefanial Slandands
on Beneral Meedings. Mr. Parakh is elgités and i not disqualified from being re-appointed as Diector in terms
of Section 164 of the Act and has consented Lo confinug as an [ndependant Director of the Company. The
Company has also recesved a declaration that he meets with the criiena of independence as prescribed under
Secfion 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations

Mame of the Companies in which Mr, Mohit Parakh holds directorship other than the Company are:

Sl.No Name of the Eumpanl_.l_ Designation

]

Sagun Commodities Privale Limited | Director
Vieenapani Tieup Pt Lid
Evernew Traders Privete Limited

..
g B B F R Bl Bl ol B
i |

Heritaoe Commodeal Private Limited
| Lance Barter Private Limited
| ‘Wondarsof Barter Private Limited
| Pallel Dealcorn Private Limited
sadabahar Properies Privale Limited Indepandent Dinactor
| Arumadan Projects Put Lid
Vigisth Chay Vyapar Limited
| North Easlern Publishing And Advertising Co Lid.
Purbanchal Prastressed Lid
Manorath Suppliers Private Limifed
| Seaside Agencies Private Limited

— | . | o | i, | i
et Bl B ar [ 2




The Company has pursuant o Section 160 of the Act, received nofice, in wiling, from a Mamber proposing
his candidature for re-appoiniment as an Independent Direchor

All relevant documents conceming re-appointment of Mr, Mohii Parakh as an Indepandant Diractor shall be
open for inspection without any fee by the Members from the date of crculaion of this Notice up to the date
of AGM, i.e., Thursday, August 28, 2023.

None of the Directors | Key Managenal Personnel of the Company or their relafives except Mr. Binod Kumar
Bihani are concemed or inlerastad (financially or ofherwise), in the proposed resolution o be passed as a
Special Resolufion, The Board recommends the Special Resolution as sat cut in ltem Mo, 3 of the Notice, for
approval of the Members of the Company.

Itam Ma, 4

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 and other apphicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rule 3 of the Companies [Appointment and Bemuneration of Managerial Perscanel) Rules, 2014,
(“the Act’] and Requiation 244 of the SEBI (Listing Otiligations and Disclosure Reguirementis) Regulations,
2015 ("Listing Regulations”), Mis. Mankani & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (Firm Registration
Mumber - S2018UFET3300) has served as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for previous financial years,

Roguiation 244 of the Listing Regutations, inter alia, provides that with affect from 1stApril 2025, the Company
|s required to appeint a Practicing Company Secretary for not more than one term of five consecutive years
or a firm of Practicing Company Secretaries as Secrelanal Audfors for not mare than two terme of five
consecutive years, with the approval of the members at iz Annual General Mesting ("AGM"} and such
Sacretania Auddors{s) must be & peer reviewed company secrefary and should not have incumed any of the
disqualifications &s specified under the Listing Regulations. Further, as per the zad Regulation, any
association of the indidual or the firm as the Secredarial Auvdior(s) of the Company before 31st March 2025
shall not be considenad for the purpose of calcutating the tenure of the Secratanal Auditars)

M's. Mankani & Asscciates is a reputed Practicing Company Secretary firm established in 2018 by Ms. Priya
Mankani, an Associate Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICS17), having a team of
saperienced and qualiied company secretaies. Over e years, thay have built a diverse clienl hasa, saring
corporates aoross the country. tts cheniele spans companies across vanous business sectors and they offor
a wide range of senices, including secretanal audits, corporate governance consulling, cadifications, and
requiaiony advisory

Taking into account the abova requiremants, along with an evaluation of proposals received by the Company
and the consideration of factors such as technical skills, independence, indusiry experience, expertize, awdit
pantners, audit team, quality of sudit practices, and past association with the Company, the Board of Directors,
on the recommendation of he Audit Committes, has approved ihe appointment of Mis, Mankani & Associatas,
Practcing Company Secratanes (Firm Registation Numbsr - S2018LIPS13300) as Secretanal Auditors of the
Company for 3 ferm of five consecutive years, 1o-hold office from the concusion of this AGM il the conclusion
of 44* AGM of the Company to be held in the Year 2030, covering the period from the financial year ending
on 315t March 2026 fill financial year ending 315t March 2030, subject 1o the approval of the mambers of the

Company




The Board of Qirectors in consuttation with the Audit Committes and M's, Mankani & Associates, fixed the
remuneration payable for the financisd year 2025-26 at ¥ 7,500/ [Fupees seven thousand fve hundred only),
plus any out-ol-pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with the audi and ofher applicable taxes,

The Company has received writhen consent from Mis. Mankani & Associabes confirming their eligibility and
willingness 1o be appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company. Thay have also confirmad that they
meet the requirements to be appointed as Secretarial Auditors in accordance with the provisions of the Act
and Listing Regulations, and they hold 2 valid cerlificate issued by the Peer Review Board of IC51 and that
they have not incurred any of the disqualfications as specified by the 3EBI The appointment, if made,
complies with fhe applicable provisions of the Acl and Lstng Requlations. The Board of Directors in
consultation with the Audit Committes and Mis. Mankani & Associates, may alter or vary the terms and
conditions of appomtment, including remuneration, in such manner and fo such extent as may be mutusty
agread.

HMone of the Directors, Key Manegensl Fersonnel of the Company and their relatves are, in any way,
concerned or nterested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at llem No. 4 of the accompanying
MoBice of the 38 AGM. Accordingly, the Board of Direclors recommends aforesaid appoiniment 1o the
members for their approval by way of an Ordinary Resciution as set owt at fem No. 4 of e accompanying
Motice of the 300 AGH,

By order of the Board of Direciors,

T il T gy W
Chand Ratan Modi e

- -_-:-'._- |._| :qr'.":qu‘\-\‘

f!_:l"-. ;

Date: 16.05.2025
Place: Kolkata




INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT /| RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE

FORTHCOMING AGM

[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings)

Particulars

ltem No.2

Item No.3

Mame of the Direclor

Diate of birth
Age

6

Mr. Chiand Ratan Modi
{DIN: 00343685)
.'Jul'g,r'i 1, 1958

Mr. Mohit Parakh
(DIN: 02033154)

i Rori 18, 1684

a1

Mationality
Qualfications

Indian

Bachelor's degree in Commerce from |

the University of Riajasthan. |

Indian

Bachelor's degree in Commerce from
the University of Calculta

Profile, expanence and
experfise in  specific
functicnal areas

He has been associated with the
Company since 1999, and has been a
prominent figure in the real estate sector
for more than four decades, successfully
leading varous high-profile prajects.

He is at the helm of overall strategic
decision-making of the Company and
provides |leadership to all cparations.

An independent director with over 12
years of with extensive expertise in both
corporate leadership and
entrepreneurial ventures.

As a proprietor ol a successful real
estale firm, Shrbrddhi Properties, he
has a strong command in the real 2stale
industry specializing in  sirategic
oversight, project management, and
financial govemance.  Adept  in
professional accounting, he i an expert
in budgeting, financial analysis and
managerment aking  with  nsk

managemeant,

Date of first appointment
aon the Board

August 22, 1999

September 28, 2020

Sharshalding in  the
Company  (including
sharehoiding az a
beneficial owner)

MIL




Relationship with other
Directars, Manager or
with KMP

Father of Mrs. Chanchal Rungta, and
chasely related to Ms. Tripty Modi & Kirti
Modi,

e _[;f__...-_...ngs
altended during the

| financial year 2024-25

“No. of meetings held:6
Mo, of meelings attended &

No. of meefings held:g
No. of meefings attended:6

List af oulside
Direclorships  held  In
other Public Companies
(exchuding foreign
Companies and
Companies under
Section 8 of the
Companies Act, 2013)

The Listed entity from
which  Director  has
resigred in last hree

years

1) Purbanchal Prestressed Lid

7] Maurya Trading Co. Ltd

3) Sangrahalaya Timber and Crafts Lid
d) Hotahoti Wood Products Lid
5) Morth - Eastem  Publishing
Advertising Co Lid

and

1) Purbanchal Prestnessed Lid
2) Visisth Chay Vyapar Limited
) Narth Eastern Publishing and
Advertising Co Lid

Chairman [ member of

the Commitlees of Board

of Directors of other

companies in which ha is
| a Diractor ®

Sangrahalaya Timber and Crafts |
Lid

Hatahoti Wood Products Lid
Morth Eastem  Publishing and
Advertising Co Ltd.

1] Purbanchal Prestressed Lid
2] Visisth Chay Vyapar Limited
3} Narth Eastern Publishing and
Advertising Co L.

Terms and conditions of
Appointment or  Re-
appaintment

Mr. Chard Ratan Modi is Gable to refine
by rotation,

As par the resolution (fem Mo.3) of the
Natice convening this meeting read with
Expianatory stalements therefo, Mr.
Mohtt Parakh is proposed to be
appointed for a second term of 5 (Five)
consecutive years commencing from the
conciusion of this AGM 3 the 44th AGM
of the Company

Remuneration proposed
to be paid

Remuneration las!
drawn by such person, if
applicable (As per last

awdited balance shest
dated March 31, 2024)

NIL

“Includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.,

In addition ko the above, ather requisite details required relating to aforesaid appoiniment ( re-appointment
hawve already been provided elsewhere in the Board's Report.

T4




Annexure-ll

THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

The way 1o vole elecironically on COSL e-Voling system consists of *Two Steps” which are mentioned
bl

Step 1 Access to CDGL e-Voling system
Step 2; Cast your vote elecironically on COSL e-Vioting system

Cetails on Step 1 8 mentoned balow:
{a) Login method for e-Voting for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 09, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by the Listed Companies,
Individual Sharsholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vole through their demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depasilory Participants. Shareholders are advised to updale their mobile
number and email id in their demat accounts in order to access e-\ioling facility

Lagin method for Individual shareholders holding secunities in demal mode is given below:

Type of shareholders | Login Method

1) Existing users who have opted for Easi | Easisst:

Individual _ Users who have opted for East | Easlest facility, can login through their existing
Sharehoiders holding user id and password, Oplion will be made available 1o reach e-Voting page
securities in Demat without any further authentication. The users to login Easi | Easiest are

mode with COSL requested to visit COSL website www.cdsEndia com and ciick on login icon &

Mew System Myeas: Tab and then use your existing Myeasi usemame &
password.

Afler successiul login the Easi [ Easiest user will be able ko see the e-Vating
option for eligible companies where the eVobing 5 In progress as per the
infarmation provided by company. On clicking the e-\Vobing option, the user will
b atie o see e-\Vobing page of the e-Vobing service provider for casting your
vote during the remole e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during
the meeting. Addiionally, there are also links provided to access the syslem of
all e-Voling Service Providers, so that the user can wisit the e-\oling service
providers website directly. The menu will have links of &-Yoling service provider
i.e., COSL. Click on CDSL 1o cast your vole,




3} Users not registerad for Easi | Easiest:

If the user is not registered for Easi / Easiest, option o register i available at

COSL website www.cdsiindia.com and click on login & Mew System Myeasi Tab
and then click on registration option.

Alematively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Mumber and PAN No. from an e-Voting link available on
www.cdslindia.com home page. The syslem will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account.
After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voling opfion
where the e-Voting Is in progress and also able to directly access the system of
all e-Vafing Senvice Providers,

Individieal Users registered for NSOL IDeAS facility:

Shareholders Holding Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Senaces wabsite of NSOL viz. hilps:(eserices.
sacuribies in demat nedl.com sither on a parsonal compader or on @ mobile, On the e-Services home page,
made with NSOL click on the "Beneficial Owner” icon under “Lagin® which |5 available undar ‘|DeAs
sechion, this will prompl you 1o anter your existing User ID and Password. After
successful authentication, you will be able 1o see e-Voting services under Valua added
senilces. Click on "Arcess to e-Voling” under e-Voling senices and you will be 2bke to
see e-Voling page. Click on Company name of 8-Voting service provider i.e., CDSL
and you will be re-directed o &-Voting website of COSL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period & woling during the meeting.

Users not registered for NSDL IDeAS facility:

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, oplion to regester s avalable al
hitps:/lesenices nsdlcom. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Poral® or cick at
hitps: lesanices.nzdl.com/Secureiebideas DirectReq sp

e-Voling website of NSDL:

Visit the a-Woting wehsite of NSDL, Opan web browser by typing the following URL:
hitps:iiwww evating nsdl.comy ethar on a personal compuler or on & mobie,

Once the home page of &-Voting system is lsunched, ik on the kcon “Login™
which i available under "Shareholder § Member' seciion. A new screen will opsn.
You will have to enter your Liser 1D (i.e., your sixteen-digit demat accounl msmber
hald with NS0L), Password | OTF and a Venfication Code as shown an the screen
After successtul authentication, you will be redirectad to NSOL Dapository sita
whenain you can see a-Voling page. Click on Company name or e-Voling senvice




provider | ., COSL and you wil be redirecled 1o &-Valing website of CDSL for
casting your vobe dunng the emoie e-Voling penod & voling duning the meeting

OTFP Based Login

For OTP based login you can click
on hitps leservices redl comiSecureWeb/evoling/evotingloginsp. You will have o
enter your 8-digit OP 1D 8-digit Client Id, PAN Mo, Verificabon code and generate OTP
Enter the OTP raceived on registered email id'mobile number and click on login. After
succasshul authenticaton, you will be rediractad 10 NSDL Depesitory site wherain you
can see a-\Voling pape. Chick on company name or e-Voting service provider name
and you will be re-directed o e-Voting service provider website for casting your vole
during the rermate -Yoling period or joining virtual mesting & voting during the meeting

e-Woting mobile application of NSDL:
Shareholders [ Members can also downioad NSDL Mobile App “NEDL Speede” facilty
by ecanning the OR code menbonad below fior saamiess voting axpenence.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

@ AppStore B Google Play

You can also I_ﬂgln using the fogin credentials of your demat account through your
Shareholders (holding | Depository Participant registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-Voling facility. Upon logging
securities in demat in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Vioting oplion, you will be redirected
mode} login thiough | 4o NSDL / CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
their depositary Voting feature. Click on Company name or e-Voling senice provider i.e., CDSL and you
panicipants will be redirected to e-Voting website of COSL for casting your vole during the remote
a-Voling pericd & voting during the meeling.

Irmpariant note: Members who are unable to refieve User 1D | Password are advised fo use Forget Lser 1D
gnd Forget Password option available at abows mentioned website.




ks o dermat mode for any techmcal issues related b kogin

Ihmuﬂh Depasilory L. NEDL and COSL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Sharehalders hoiding securities in Members facing any technical issue in login can contact

Demat mode with CDSL CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdask evaling@odslindia com or contact at toll free no.
1800 21 09911

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Members facing any technical issue in login can contac
Demat mode with NSDL NSDOL helpdesk by sending a request  al
evoling@nsdl.co.in or call at - 022 - 4886 7000 and 022
- 2459 TOI0

{b) Login Method for e-Voling and jolning virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual
ghareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical
maode,

How to Log-in 1o COSL e-Vating websita?

1. Visit the &-Vobing wabsite of COEL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: www.evotingindia.com
efther on a personal computer of on a makse.

2. Once the home page of e-Voling system is launched, click on the icon “Login® which is available under
‘Bharaholder | Member' section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User 1D, your Pagaward / OTF and & Verfication Code
gs showm on e screen

Altematively, & you are registered for NSDL e-services ie, IDEAS, wyou can logdn al
htips: feserdees radl com! with your exigting IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL e-senvices after using
your log-in credentiats, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 e, Cast your vole electronically.

4 Your User ID details are given below,

SiNo, | Manner of holding ehares (e, Damat [NSDL or | Your User ID is;
COSL) or Physical

A For Members who hold shares in demat account | 8 Character DP 1D followed by 8 Digit Client 1D.
| with NSDOL

For example, if your OP 10 & IN300™ and Client ID
i5 12°***** then your uger ID is IN3DO* 12

Far Members who held shares in demat account | 16 Digit Beneficiany 1.
with COSL




Fnremplgr-wynu: Benaficiary |D ig 12+ eeeri
then your user I i 12¢ssresmvee

For Members holding shares in Physical Form EVEM Mumber followed by Folio Mumber regisierad
with the Company.

For example, if folio number i 001" and EVEM is
130720 then vser 1D is 130720001

5. Password details for sharehokders other than Individual shareholders are glven balow:

If you are already registened for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password 10 fogin and cast your
vioda.

I you are using COSL e-Vaoding system for the first time, enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN isswed by
Income Tax Deparment

However, shareholders who have not updated their FAN with the Company / Depository Participant are
requested to use the sequenca number sant by Company/RTA or contact CompanyRTA

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the
company recands in arder o bogin. If both the details are not recorded with the depesitory or
company, please enter the membser id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field,

. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT" tab.

e. Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, sharehodders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation’ manu wherain
they are required to mandatorly enter their login password in the new passwoed field. Kindly note that this
password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other comgsany on whagh
they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through COSL platform. |t 5 strongly
racommendad not fo share your password with any ofher person and fake utmost care bo keep your
password confidental,

f. For sharehaolders holding shares in physical form, the detais can be used only for e-veting an the resolutons
contzined in this Motice

g. Click on the EVEN for the Company Nama on which you choose 1o vote. On the voting page, you will see
“RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION® and against the same the opticn “YESNG" for voling. Select the option
YES or NO as desired. The optian YES Implies that you assent 1o the Rasolution and option NO implies
that you dissent o the Resolution




h. Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK if you wish 1o view the enfire Resclufion detsils, After
seleching the resolution, you have decided 10 wote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation boo will
be displayed. If you wish fo confirm your vote, click on "0K, else to change your vobe, oiick on
"CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you "COMFIRMT your vobe on the resclution, you will not ba allowed o maodify your vobe.
You can also lake a print of the voles cast by clicking on "Click hare to prinl” option on the Vialing
page. I a demal account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User 1D and
the image verification code and chck on Fargot Password & enter the details as prompted by the
system

There is also an oplional provision o upload BRIPOA i any uplcaded, which will be made

guaifable to scrutinizer for warfication.

(e} Facility for Mon - Individual Shareholders and Custodians —Remote Voting

Man-Indivdual shareholders [i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are requred fo

A scanned copy of the Registraton Form bearing the stamp and sign of the antity should ba emailed fo

helpdesk. evoling@cdslindia.conm.

After receiving the login details 8 Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password.
The Compliance Lser would be able to fink the account(s) for which they wish to vote on,

The kst of accounts linked i the login should be mailed to helpdesk avoting@cdslindia com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able o cast thair vabe.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolubion and Powear of Attomey {POA) which they have ssued in favour
of fhe Cusdodian, if any, should be uploadad in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the
came,

Altermatively, nan-individual shareholders are required 1o send the ralevani Board Resolution! Authorty kether sfe.
together with attesied specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized b vole, (o the
Scrutinizer and to the Cornpany &t the email address viz; kiicl 17 @ gmail.com, 7 they have voted from indiidual
tab & not upioaded same in the COSL e-voling system for the scrufinizer to venify the same.




PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-
VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:

1. For Physical shareholders- please prowde necessary delails like Folio Mo, Mame of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (frant and back). PAN (self stiested scanned
copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self altested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by emal o
Company/RTA emall id,

2, For Demat shareholders -, please provide Demat account detials (CDSL-16 digil beneficiary
ID or NSDL-16 digit DFID + CLID), Name, clent master or copy of Consolidated Account
stalemenl, PAN {self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR {self attested scanned copy
of Aadhar Card) to Company/RTA email id.

If you have any queries of ssues regarding attending AGM & e-Voling from the CDSL e-Voting
Systam, you can write an email 1o helpdesk evatingiedslindia.com of contact al 022- 23058738 and
022-23058542/43.

All gnevances connected with the faclily for voting by electronic means may be addressed o,
Manager, {CD5L) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon
Futurax, Mafatial Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send
an email o helpdesk avoling@cdsindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43.

1. M= Mankani & associates- Mrs. Priya Mankani, Praclizing Company Secretary has been appointed as
the Scrutinizer o scrufinize the e-woting process in & fair and transparent manner, The Scrufinizer shall
not later than 3(three) days of conclusion of the maating maka a consolidated scrutinizar's Rapart {which
inclsdes remote e-vobing and woling by poll) of the tofal votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the
Chairman or a person authorised by her in wiifing who shall countersign the same and declare the results
of the woling forthwith.

Subyect to cashng of requisite number of votes in favour of the resolutionis), it shall be deemed to be
passed on the date of AGM of the Company,

The results declared along with the Scrufinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website
ficl17 hgmad.com and on the website of COSL immediately after declaration of resulls of pessing of the
resolution &t the AGM of the Company and the same shafl alzo be communicated fo the Metropolitan
Stock Exchange af India Limited {MSE) where the shares of the Company are fsted,




ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall)

Ciierit-10 No.

Name of Member(s):

Nama of the Froxy holder

Registered Address:

Number of Shares Hald

I, hereby record my presence of the 33 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company heid on Thursday
the August 28, 2025 af 09:00 a.m. &f 1% Floor, Reom No. 5, HM Market, TR Phookan Road, Guwahat-781001.

Signature of the Member / Represantalive / Proxy Holder®
* Stnke ouf whichever is nol appficable




FORM OF PROXY
(Pursuant fo Secfion 105(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 183} of the Companies [Managemant
and Administration) Rufes, 2014)

Falio No.: ORID o Cliant ID No.;
hame of the Member{s): Email Id:
Regislered Address:

i"We, being members, holding shares of KAMING FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMPANY LTD hereby
appaini:

1. Name:
Address: o failing himfher

2 MNarme:
Address: o faliing Wmher

& Name:
Addrass;

85 my / otr Proxy fo vobe for me £ us, onh my / our behalf af tha 35" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the
Company heid on August 28, 2025 af (8:00 am, and at any adjoummendt thersol in respect of the resolutions
as menfioned in the Company's Nofice.;

Signed this___ day of 2025 Signature of Member___
‘ Revenue

Signature of Proxy holder(s): 1
2
3.

NOTE: The Form of Proxy duly completed must be deposifed at the registered office of the Company at 1#
Flaor, Room Ne. 5, HM Market, TR Phookan Reoad, Guwahati- 781001 nof later than 48 hours befare the fime

for halding the meeting.




Route map for the location of the venue of the 391 Annual General Meeting of Kamini Finance
And Investment Company Ltd




Board’s Report

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-2025

Thie Direclors are pleased fo present fhe 38 Annual Report on the business and operations of Kamini Finance
And Investment Company Lid {"the Company’} together with tha Audited Financial Statements for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025.

Financial Highlights

Curing the year under review, performance of your company is as under;

Particulars 2024-25

Fevanue from Operations .
Cther Income 176
Total Income 176
Less: Expenditure _ 1856
Profit before Tax (1,679)
| Provision for Taxation ' :

(1.679)

| Add: Balance brought forward from last year (76485)
Transterred to Reserve uls 45-IC of the RBI -
Act 1M

Taxation for earfier year .
Balance Profit / Loss camied forward to (78,175)
Balance Sheet

Dperations and State of Company's Affairs

The Company’s performance is influenced by a range of factors, Including markel dynamics and external
conditions. While we continue to aclvely navigate and miligate thess challenges, we remain optimistc aboul
the Company’s future prospects.

Dividend
Considering the non-availabdity of profits during the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Board of
Directors of the Company has not proposed any dividend on equity shares.

Share Capital

The Authorized Share Capital of your Company i 3 12,01,00,000 /- divided into 12,0,10,000 Equity Shanes
of face value of F10/- each,




The lesued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of your Company = 2 120016 500/- divided info
1,20,01,650 Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each.

There 15 no change in the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company duning the year
under revigw.

General Reserves
Mo amount has been transferred ta the General Reserve far the financizl year ended March 31, 2025,

NBFC Resarve Fund

Durng the year under review, no amount was fransferred fo the NBFC Reserve Fund pursuant to the
provisions of Section 45-|C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as the Company incurred a boss during
e year,

Material Changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the
date of the report

Mo materal changes and commitments affecting the financial posiion of the Campany have oocurmed
between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the
date on which 1his Report has been signed

Change in the nature of Business, if any.

The Campany & engaged in Non-Banking Financial activity and is duly registerad with the RBI as an NBFC
Company. There has been no change(s) of business of the Company or in the nafure of business camed on
by the Company during the financial year undar review.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators [ courts [ tribunals impacting the going
concern status and the Company's operations in future

During the year under review, no significant and material orders have been passed by the regulators { courts
{ tribunals that may impact the going concern status and the operations of the Company in fturs,

Particulars of contracts and arrangement with Related Parties

All fransactions entered by the Company with Related Parties during the financial year 2024-25 as defined
under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Specification of Definitions
Details) Rules, 2014 were held in the Ordinary Course of Buginess and at Arm's Length pricing basis. There
were no matenally significant transactions with Relaled Parties during the financial year 2024-25, which were




in conflict with the interest of the Company, Suitable disclosures as required under ind AS-24 have baen
made in the Nokes fo the financial statements.

Accordingly, the disclosure in Form AOC-2, pursuant to section 134{3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with Rule 8(2) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not required. The policy on Related Party
Transactions can ba accessad on the website of the Company https:i'www. kficl.com/,

The Company has adequate system of intemnal control to safeguard and protect from loss, unauthorized use
or disposition of its assets. All the ransactions are properly authorized, recorded and reported fo the
Management. The Company i following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining
the books of accounts and reporfing financial statements. The internal auditor of the company checks and
verifies the intemal controf and monitors them in accordance with policy adopled by the company,

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

During the year under review, no Corporate Insolvency Resoluiion application was made or proceeding was
initiated by  against the Company under the provisions of the Insalvency and Bankruplcy Code, 2016 (as
amended). Further, no application or proceeding by / against the Company under the provisions of the
Insalvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (22 amended) is pending &s on March 31, 2025.

REBI Directive to NBFC

The Company did rot invile or accept any deposits from the public during the inancial year ended March
31, 2025. Further, for the financial year commencing April 1, 2025, the Board of Directors, through a
resolution passed at s meeting, has confirmed that the Company shall not invite or accept any deposits
from the pubbc during the financial year 2025-26.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

The Company does nol have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture, or Associate Company as defined under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Deposits
The Company has not accepted any deposit from public within the meaning of Section 73 of the Compankes

Act, 2013 read with Companies {Acceplance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and as such, no unclaimed / unpaid
mialured deposits or interest thereon was due as on March 31, 2024

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Az per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibiity Policy) Rules, CSR is not applicable to the Company during the financial year under review.,
Accordingly, no CSR initiafives or expenditures were undertaken.




Conservation of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The provision of Section 134{m) of the Companies Acl, 2013 relaling to conservalion of energy and
technology absorption do not apply 1o the Company. There was no foreign inflow or outflow during the year
under raviaw.

Risk Management Policy

The Company's Risk Management Policy recognizes that risk is an integral parl of any business and
the Company is committed to manage the risk in a praactive and efficient manner.

Number of Board Meetings

Durireg the year, & (six) mestings of the Board were hald, The details of meslings of the Board held during
tha fnancial year 2024-25 have been provided in the Corporate Govermance Report which forms part of the
Report.

Audit Committee

The details pertgining to the compasition of the Audit Committee are included in the Corporate Governance
Report which is a part of this Report.

Extract of Annual Return

In accordance with Section 92(3) and 134{3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Management and Adminisiration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Relurn as on March 31, 2025 is available on the
Company’s websile https:/fwww.kficl.com/,

Details of significant & material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunal

Mo significant & material orders have been passed by any regulator or cour or fibunal agairst the Company.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has a Vigd Mechansm / Whistle Blower policy and it has established adequate vigll
meachanism for its employees and directors o report concern aboul unethical practics. No persen has been
denied access fo the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The [atest Vigil Mechanism | Whistie Blower Palicy
is available at hitps.\hwww kficl com/

Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund

Since there was no unpaidiunciaimed Dividend declared and paid last year, the provisions of Sechon 125 of
the Companies Act, 2013 do nol apply.




Internal Auditor

Mis, Gaurav Manof & Co., praclicing chartered accountanis, perform the duties of Infernal Awditor of the
Company and his report s reviewed by the Audit Committee from time fo fime.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnal

Your Company’s Board is duly constituted in compiiance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Securifies and Exchange Board of India (Lisiing Obligafions and Disclosure Reguirements)
Reguiations, 2015 ("Listng Regulations”),

The Independent Directors have confemned that they meet with the criteria of independence as required
under sub section ¥ of Sechon 149 of the Compenies Act, 2013 and Requlation 25{8) of the Listing

Reguiations.

The Board is also of the opinion that Independent Directars meel with the criteria of independence under
sub saction 6 of Section 143 of the Act and Regulation 16{1){b) of the Listing Regulations.

There has been no change in the circumstances afacting their status as Independent Direciors of the
Company

All the Independent Directors have registered themsalves / renewed their registration pursuant to the
Companies (Creafion and Maintenance of databank of independent Dwectors) Rules, 2019

The Board confims that the Independent Directors also meet the criteria of Integrity, expertise and
expenience (including the proficiency) in terms of Rule B{5){iia) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Following re-appointment of Directors had been made during the year:

. Pursuant o Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Chand Ratan Medi (DIN: 00343685), whao
refires by rofation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General
Meeling.

. Mr. Mahit Parakh, Independent Director had been appointed by the Members al (e 3dth Annual General
Meeting held on Seplember 28, 20220 for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years from July 30, 2020 fll the
conclusion of the 35 AGM of the Company. The said fenure will expire due to efflux of time. The Board
vide its Meeting held on May 16, 2025 had approved the re-appointment of Mr. Maohit Parakh for a second
term of 5 (Five) conseculive years, commencing from the conclusion of this AGM till the 3% AGM of the
Company, subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Mesting. The brief profile
of Mr. Mohit Parakh and other relevant information under Regulation 38 of the Listing Reqgulations and
Secretariad Standard on General Meetings with respect fo Director se2eking re-appoinment have been
provided in e Natice convening Annual General Meeting.

Key Managerial Personnel Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial
Parsonnel of tha Company as on March 31, 2025 are:
a  Mr. Chand Ratan Modi, Managing Director
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b M. Kirti Modi, Chief Financia! Officer
¢ Mr. Risbh Singhi, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

The Company has put in place an Induction and Familiansation Programme for Independent Directors of the
Company. The details of such Familiadzaton Programme arg mentioned in the Report on Corporate
Governance, which forms part of this Annual Report and the same is available at the [ink
hitlps: e, kiicl.com/index, hitm

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

In tarms of requirements of Schedule 1V of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the meseting
of Independent Directors was separately held on February 13, 2025 during the year under repor,

Company's Policy on Appointment and Remuneration of Directors

The Company has been following a policy namely "Nomination and Remuneration Podicy™ with respect 1o
appointment and remuneration of Direclors, Key Managenal Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management
Personnel. The appointment of Dereciors, KMF and Senior Management Fersonnel is subject to the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committes (NRC).

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Momination and Remuneration Policy of the Company is in conformily wath he requirerment of Section
178(3) of the Companies Acl, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. The objeclives and key features of this
Policy are:

1. Formutate the criteria for determining qualifications, competencies, positive atinbutes and independenca
af the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management Personnel and recommend fo
the Board, a policy relating fo the remuneration of Directors, Key Managenal Personnel and other

employaes.

14. For every appaintment of an Independent Direclor, the Committes shall evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge and expanence on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a descrption of the
role and capabiliies required of an Independent Director. The person recommended to the Board for
appointment as an Independent Director shall have the capabiibes identified in such description. For the
purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Commitiee may:

a. Use the services of an exlernal agencies, if required;
b. Consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity, and
&, Consider the time commitments of the candidates.

2. Davising a policy on Board diversity;




3. Kentfing persons who are qualified o become Directors and persons who may be appointed in Key
Manageria and Sanior Managament,

4. Directors' induction and confinued updation as and when required of their roles, responsibilities and
liabilifies;

5. Formulation of criteria for performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Dérectors Including
Independent Directors | Mon-Executive Directors;

The aforesaid Nomination and Remuneration Palicy has been upleaded on the website of your Company al
https fwww licl comlindex himi

Secretarial Standards

The Company has devised adequate sysiems o ensure compfance with the applicabée Secretzrial
Standards izsued by the Institute of Company Secretanes of India and such systems are operating efiectively

Directors' Responsibility Statement

Pursuant bo Section 134{5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”), your Directors to the best of their
knowiedge and ability confirm that;

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with praper explanation relating to material departures, if
any;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and apphed them consistently and made judgements
arvd estimates that are reascnable and prudent so as to give a fnse and fair view of the stale of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2025 and of the Profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

&} the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adeguate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other regqularites;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concerm basis;

e} proper internal financial contrals are followed by the Company and that such financial confrols ane
adequate and are operating effectively; and

f) the Dweclors had devised proper systems fo ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operaling effectvely duning the financial year ended March 31
2025,

Reporting of Fraud by Auditors

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors have nol reporied, any incident
of fraud committed in your Company by its Officers or Employees, to the Auwdil Commitlee and [ or fo the




Board under Seclion 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 details of which needs to be mentioned in this
Report.

Auditors

Mis. S. Mandal & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No: 314188E),was appointed by the
Members of the Company at the 38" Annual Genaral Meeting as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a
second consecutive term of 5 (Five) years commencing from the conclusion of the Annual General Mesting
hedd on September 26, 2024 fill the conclusion of the 43 Annual General Mesting to be held in the financisl
year 2029-30. The Auditors’ Report on the Annual Accounts of the Company forms part of the Annual Report
af the Company. The Auditors’ Report does not conlain any qualificabion, reservation or adverse remark or
disclaimer.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Saction 204 of the Act and the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of
Managenial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and amended Regulation 244 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board
has based on the recommendation of Audit Committee approved appaintment of M's. Mankan & Associales,
{Firm Registration Number - 52018UP613300) Company Secietanses, represented by its Parner, Ms, Priva
Mankani (A&CS Mo, 34744, C. P, Na. 17847, 1o conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2024-25.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, X025 is annexed herewith and marked
as Annexure - | to this report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation,
adverse remark or disclamar,

Disclosure as required under Rule 8(5)(xii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

The disciosure as per Rule B{5){xii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 25 amended, is not applicable
ta the Company.

Particulars of Loans, Investments and Guarantees

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company has not made any investment, has nof given any loans, has
not provided any guaraniees, has not provided any secunty in connection with any loan, has not acquined
securities by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, in excess of the threshoids provided in Section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013.

Managerial Remuneration, Particulars of Employees and related disclosure

Details of remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1)
and Rule 5(2) of the Companies [Appeintment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are
as follows:




A. Managerial Remuneration

The Company has not paid any remuneration io its Directors, including Whole-Time Direciors, durng the
financial year,

B. Particulars of Employees

Delails as required under Section 187{12) of the Act read with Rules 5{1), 32) and 5{3) of the Companies
(Appaintment 2nd Remuneration of Managenal Personne!) Rules, 2014 (as amended), are as follows:-

Further, the Executive Direclor(s), Non-Executive Director(s), and Independent Cirector(s) of the Company
have not drawn any remuneeation from the Company during the financial year. Pursuant to Rube 5(2) and
5(3) of the Companies (Appaintment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:
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Disclosures under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013

Your Company firmly befieveas in providing a safe, suppartive and harassment free workplace for each and
every individual working for the Company through various interventions and practices and has zero lolerance
for sexual harassment at workplace. It is the continuous endaavour of the managament of the Company 1o
create and provide an environment to all its employees thal is free from discrimination and harassment
Including sexual harassment. No complaints relating 1o the sexual harassment had been received during the
year under repart.

Statement on Matemity Benefit Compliance

Pursuanl [o the requirements of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, the Company confirms its commitment o
full compliance with all applicable provisions of the Act.




During the reporting pericd, no employee availed matemity benefits, However, the Company has established
the necessary policies and mechanisms o ensure that all entilements under the Act—such as paid matemity
leave, nursing breaks, and protection from dismissal during matemity keave—are provided as and when
requred.

The Company remains fully committed to supparting ifs employees and ensuring 2 safe, nclusive, and
compdiant workplase amiaronmant,

Annual Performanca

Evaluation of the Directors In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules issued
there under and the Listing Regulations, based on the critena such as number of Board and Committes
meelings attended during B year, contributions to the decision making and relevant expertize (o the Board
etc.. the Board of Directors has camied oul the annual performance evaluation of the entire Soard,
Committees and all the Directors based on the critena laid down by the Nominalion and Remunaration
Committee. In & separats meeting of Independent Directors, performance of Non-Independent Directors, the
Chalrman of the Company and the Board as a whole was evaluated,

Corporate Governance

A Report on Corporate Governance gong with a Cedtificate from the Practicing Company Secrefary
confiming corporaie govemance requirements a5 stipulated under Listing Regulations and confirming thal
none of the Board of Directors. of the Company has heen debamed or disqualified from being appoinied or

centinuing a5 a Director of the Company as prescribed under Liskng Regulations is enclosed as Annexure
= |l and forms parl of this Report.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

The Indian francial services sector has demonstrated resilience and growth, driven by faclors such as
increased radail participation, technologicsl advancements, and faverable requlatory developments. The
Securilies and Exchange Board of India (SEB() has implemented measures o enhanca markel fransparency
and invesior protection, fosterirg a conducive environment for broking firms,

The company has implemenied a robusl risk managemen! framework fo idenlify, assess, and mifigate
potential risks, Key nsks include:

Markel Volatlity: Fluctuations in markst condiions can impact trading volumes and profitability.

Regulatory Changes: Adherence lo evolving SEBI requlalions requires confinueocus manitaring and
comgliance,
Cybersecanty Threats: Protecting client data and maintaining the integrty of trading systems s
paramaunl.
Mitigation strategies involve reqular risk assessments, compliance audits, and investment in cybersecurity
infrastructure.

The company adheres to the highest standards of corporate: gevemnance, ensuring transparency and
accouniability in all cperations. The Board of Directors comprises expenenced professionals wilh diverse
experiise, and varous commilleas overses key areas such as audit, rsk management, and remureration

a4




Focus on Sustainability: Implement environmentally and socially responsible practices in business
aperations.

The company remains committed lo delivering value lo its stakeholders through strateqc
inifiatves, operational excellence, and a client-centric approach. The managemeant & confident
in nawvigating the chailenges of the financial markets and achieving sustained growth in the
CoMming years

Cautionary Staterment

Statements In the Annual Report, including those which relate to Management Discussion and Anatysis,
describing the Company's objeclives, projections, estimates and expectafions, may constitute ‘forward
locking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and requlations. Although the expectations are
baszed on reasonable assumptlions, the actual results might diffier.,
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Your Derectors are thankhul for all the guidance, support and assistance racaived from the financial institution,
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‘Annexure - I’

Report on Corporate Governance

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our phiosophy of Corporate Governance & founded on the pillars of faimess, accountabslity, disclosures and
transparency, equal treatmenl to all the stakeholders and social responsibility. Your Company believes that
Corporate Governance exlends beyond corporate laws. s fundamental objective Is nat merely 1o fullll legal
requirements, but aso the adhenence to systems and procedures, ensuring the commitment of the Board of
Directors in managing the Company's affairs in a fransparent manner fo maximize the long-term value of the
slakeholders at lange.

Your Company has adopted an appropriate Corporate Governance framewark fo ensure fimely and accurate
disclosure on all material matters including the financial position, performance, ownership and gavernance of
the Company.

Your Company's policies and praciices relating to the Comporate Govemance are discussed in the following
sectans viz,:

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Beard of Direciors of your Company has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors
to have a balanced Board Structure. The Board has five Directors {including bwo Woman Direclors), out of which
one is Executive Director, two are Non - Execufive Nan- Independent Director and two are Non-Execufive,
Independent Directors of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors of your Company is Non-Executive, Independent Directar,

The Board has adequate mix of skills, experfise and compelencies for running the business of the Company.
The fellowing chart specifies the same:

| Name of Director | Designation | | Operations | Management | Administration | Finance | Law
Category

I, Jayania | Chairman, : y
Chawdhiary Independeant
Diracior

Mr. Chand Ratan | Managing Direcior
Modi




Mrs.
Rungla

Chanchal | Non-Execuiive & |
Mon-Independent

Director

Mon-Execufive &
Non-Independent
Dinector

Ms. Tripty Madi

Mr. Mohit Parakh | Independent I

Direcior

Composition of the Board, details of other directorships, committee positions are given below:

Name

Directors
Identification
Number
(DIN)

Category of
Directors

Relationship
with  other
Diractors

Mo. of
Directorships
held
(including
Kamini
Finance and
Investment
Ltd.)*

Mr. Jayanta
Chowdhury

10557724

Chairman,
Independent
Diraclor

&

Mo. of Membership/
Chairperscnship in Board
Committees  (including
Wamini Finance and
Investment Ltd.)

Member Chairperson

‘Mr, Chand
Ratan Modi

00343685

Man-
Executive &
Nan-
Independant
Drirector

Father of Mrs
Chanchal

Rungta

07203672

Nan-
Expcutive &
Man-
[ndependent
Director

Close relative
af the Modi
family

07590027

Nan-
Executive &
Man-
Indepandent
Directar

Daughter of | 6

Mr.  Chand
Ratan Modi

' Indepandent

Directar




Notes:

Number of Direciorships held excludes Directorships in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, High
Value Debt Listed Enfities, Companies under Section B of the Companies Act, 2013 (earlier Section 25 of the
Companies Act, 1556} and Alternate directorships. Only covers Membership | Chairpersonship of Audit
Committee and Stakeholders Relationshep Committee of Listed and Unlisied Public Limited Companies,

Nane of the Direciors on the Beard is a member of mane than 10 Board Committees and a Chairman of mone
than 5 such Commiliess, across all Companies in which he / she Is a Direclar

Mone of the Direclors holds directorships in more than 20 Companes and mare than 10 Public Companies
pursuani fo the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

The Board of Directors met 6 (six) times during the year under review. The date of the Board Meetings
and attendance thereat are furnished hereunder;

Sl.No | Date of Board Meeting No. of Directors present
1 April 03, 2024
2 | May 27,2024
K July 30, 2024
q
5
B

Seplember 09, 2024
November 11, 2024
February 06, 2025

enlon | on | on e | 2

Attendance of individual Directors at the Board Meetings and last AGM:

Name of Director No. of Board Meetings | Attendance at last AGM held
Attended on September 26, 2024
Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury 4 Yes

Mr. Chand Ratan Madi i Yos

Ms. Tripty Modi 6 Yes

Mrs. Chanchal Rungta i ' Yes

| Mr. Mohit Parakh G i Yes

Number of Shares and Convertible instruments held by Non- Executive Directors:

As on March 31, 2025, none of the Non-Executive Directors hold any Share / Convertible instruments in the
Company.

Independent Directors:

The Independent Direclors fullil the criteria of independence, which are given under Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2012 and Requlation 16{(1)ib] of the Lisfing Regulations and are Independent of the
Management of the Company.

All the Independent Directors have given declaration of independence as per the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations,




During the year under review, meetings of Independent Directors of the Campany, as per the requirements of
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) of the Listing Regulations, was held on February
13, 2025.

Familiarization Programma

Pursuant 1o the provision of Reguiation 25(7) of the Listing Regulations, the Company has in place
Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors to familiarize them about the Company and their role,
rights and responsibiliies in the Company. The details of Famifiarization Programme imparted during the
financial year 2024- 25, are uploaded on the website of the Company and can be accessed through web-link
hitpsJkficl.comvindes. himd,

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Your Company's Board of Directors has constifuled the following Statulory Commuttess to comply the
requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Reguialions, viz.

I, Audit Commities;
I Momination and Remuneration Commitiee;
Slakeholders Relationship Committee; and

The Chairman of the Board, in consultation with the Company Secretary and the respactive Chairman
of these Committees, determines the frequency of the meetings of these Committees. The
recommendations of the Committees are submitted to the Board for their approval

The Board of Diractors has also adopled the following policies in ine with the requiremant of the Listing
Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013

a) Whistle Biower Policy (Vigil mechanism);

b) Pelicy on Evaluation of performances of Board of Directors;

¢} Nomination and Remuneration Policy,

d) Risk Management Policy;

&) Policy on Civersily of Beard of Direclors;

fl Policy on Succession Planning for the Board and Senice Management;
g) Policy on Disclosure of Material Events ! Information;

h) Palicy for Presarvation of Documents and Archival;

i} Policy on Familiarisation Programme of Independant Direclors,
i) Policy on Ralated Party Transaciions;

&) Poficy on Determination of Material Subsidiary.

[, Audit Committee

The Compasiticn of the Audit Committee as on March 31, 2025, consists of following members
WiZ.

1. Mr. Mehil Parakh - Chairman
2. Mr. Jayania Chowdhury- Member
3. Mrs. Chanchal Rungla— Member

The Company Secretary acts as the Secrefary to the Commiliee
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The terms of reference of Audit Committee are as follows:

. Owersesing our Company's financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial information
lo ensure that the financial statement is comect, sufficient and credible;

. Recommending o the Board, the appoiniment, re-appaintment, and replacement, remuneration,
and terms of appointmant of the statutory auditor and the ficafion of audit fee;

Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance and the effectiveness of audit
ProCESS;

. Approval of payments fo the statutory auditors for any other services rendered by statubory
auditors;

. Reviewing with the management, the anrual financial stalements and audilor's reporl therean
before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference fo

1. Matlers required lo be staled in the Director's responsibility stalement to be included in the
Board's report in terms of Section 134{3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013,

2. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

3. Major accounting entries invoiving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
managemant.

4. Significant adjusiments made in the financial statements ansing out of audit findings;
2. Comphance with listng and other legal requirements relaling to financial statements;
6. Dhsclosure of any related parfy iransactions; and

7. Qualifications and modified opinions in the draft audit repart.

Heaviewing with the maragement, the quartedy, half-yeary and annual financial sfaternents
before submission {o the Board for approval;

. Seratiny of inter-corporate loans and investments:
. Waluabon of undertakings or assets of our Company, wherever it is necassary,

Evauation of internal financial confrols and risk management systems,

Approval or any subsequent modification of fransactions of our Company with related parties,

. Reviewing with the managemenl, the stalement of uses | appication of funds raised through an
308 (publicc 1ssue, nights issue, preferential issue, elc)), the statement of funds ulilized for
purposes other than those siated in the ofier document | prospecius / notice and the report




submitted by the monilofing agency manitaring the wtilization of proceeds of a pubdic or rights
tssue, and making appropsiate recommendafions fo the Board 1o take up steps in this matier;

Establishing a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to repart their genuine concems or
grievances,

. Reviewing with the management, the performance of statutory and intermal auditors and
adequacy of the intemal control systems

. Raviewing the adequacy of infemal audit function, if any, incleding the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and senionty of the oficial heading the departmant, reparting structure
coverage and frequancy of infemal audit;

. Discussion with internal suditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon,

Reviewing tha findings of any intermal investigations by the intemal auditors mnto matters whare
thera is suspected fraud or imegularity or a failure of intenal control systemns of a matenal nature
and reporting the matier io the Board;

. Discussion with statulory audilors before the audil commences, about the nalure and scope of
audil as well as post-audit discussion o ascertain any area of concam;

Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the deposilors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and craditors

. Approval of appomtment of the Chief Financial Officer after assessing the guaifications,
exparience and background, atc. of the candidate;

Reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism, in case the same is exsling;

. Carrying oul any other lunclions as provided under the Companies Acl, the SEBI Listing
Requlations and other applicable faws:

To formulate, review and make recommandalions to the Board to amend the Audit Committee
charter from time to fime;

. Owerseeing the vigil mechanism established by the Company, with the chaiman of the Audi
Commiltee direclly hearing grievances of victimization of the employees and directors, who used
the wigl mechanism ko report genuing concems in appropriate and exceplional cases;

. Recommending fo the Board of Directors the appointment and removal of the external audior,
fixation of audit fees and approval for payment for any other senvices;




y. Reviewing the uliiization of loans and / or advances from investment by the holding company in
the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the assel size of the subsidiary, whichever
i5 lower including exisfing loans f advances / investments; and

. Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes invalving merger,
demerges, amalgamation ele., on the listed enfity and its shareholders.

The Company's Audit Committes met 5 (Five] times during the financial year ended March 31,
2025 viz. April 03, 2024; May 27, 2024, July 30, 2024; November 11, 2024 and February 05,
025,

The following table presents the detads of attendance at the Audit Committee meetings held
during the year ended March 31, 2025

Members | Designation & Category No. of Mestings Attended _
Mr. Mohit Parakh Chairman, Independent Director -

Mrs. Chanchal Rungta : 5
Independent Director

Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury Member, Independent Director

Motes:

The CFC was an invitee to the Audit Committee Meelings and she attended the meetings. All the
members of the Audit Commitiee have requisite accounting and financial management expertise,

Mr. Mohit Farakh, Chairman of the Audit Commities attended the previcus Annual General Meeting
held on September 26, 2024 and responded to the quenies raised by the sharsholders,

Yearly disclosure relating to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Reguiations, 2015 was placed before
the Commiltee.

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board of Directors.
il Nomination and Remuneration Committes

The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on March 31, 2025, consists of
following membears viz.

1. Mr. Mohit Parakh - Chairman
2. Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury - Member
3 Ms. Triply Modi - Member
The Company Secretary acts as the Secrefary fo the Committes

The terms of reference of Momination and Remuneration Committee are as follows:
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a. Formulate the criteria for defermining quakfications, positive attributes and independence of a director
and recommend fo the Board a policy, relating fo the remuneration of the directors, key managerial

personnel and other employees;
b. Formulation of crtera for evaluation of independan! directars and the Board,
¢. Devising a policy on Boand diversity;

d. Identify persons who are qualified to become direcions or whe may be appointed in senior managemant
in accordance with the criteria lad down, recommend 1o the Board their appointment and removal and
shall carry out evalualion of every director's performance;

&, Analysing, manitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensation matiers,

f. Datermining cur Company's policy on specific remuneralion packages for executive directars including
pension rights and any compensation payment, and determining remunerabon packages aof such
directors;

g. Determing compensation levels payable fo the senior management personnel and other staff [as
deemed necessary), which shall be market-related, usually consisting of a fixed and variable component;

h. Rewviewing and approving compensation stralegy from lime to time in the context of the then current
Indian market in accordance with applicable laws;

I, Perform such functions as are required to be performad by the compensation commitiee under the
Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweal Equity)
Regulations, 2021,

|. Framing suitable policles and syslems to ensure that there is no violation, by an employee of any
applicable laws n India or overseas, including:

Tha Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Reguiations,
25 ar

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibiion of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade
Practices relating lo the Securifies Market) Regulations, 20043,

k. Defermine whether to extend or continue the term of appaintmant of the independent dirsctor, on the
hasiz of the report of peformance evaluation of independant directors;

. Parform such other activilies as may be delegated by the Board of Direclors and [/ or are statutorily
prescribed under any aw 0 be atlended 10 by such committee,

m. Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management, and

n. For every appointment of an independent director, the Nemination and Remuneration Committee shall
evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and expenence on lhe Beard and on the basis of such

a6




evaluation, prepare a descriphion of the role and capabilifies required of an independent direcior. The
persen recommended fo the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have the
capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the
Committes may:

1. Use the services of an external agencies, if required,
2. Consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and
3. Consider the time commidments of the candidates.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Company has formulated a Nomination and Remuneration palicy in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations and in order to harmonize the aspirations of
human resources consistent with the goals of the Company which inter alia includes Company's policy
on Board Diversity, selection, appointment and remuneration of Directors, criteria for delermining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and criteria for performance evaluation of
the Directors.

Composition and attendance at Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings:
The Company's Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 2 {Twa) times during the financial year
ended March 31, 2025 viz. May 27, 2024 and July 30, 2024.

The following table presents the delails of attendance at the Nomination & Remuneration Commitiee
meetings held durng the year ended March 31, 2025

‘Members

Designation & Category

No. of Meetings Attended

| Mr. Mohit Parakh

Chairman, Nor-Execulive -
Independent Diracior

2

' Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury

Mon-Executive - Independant
Cirecior

1

| Ms. Tripty Modi

Membar, Non-Execulive & Mon-

2

Independent Directar

Performance Evaluation

Pursuant to the prowisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Requlations, the Board of
Directars has camied out the annual performance evaluafion of the enfire Board, Committees and all
the Direclors based on the criteria kaid down by the Nomination and Remuneration Committes,

The performance of the Board and individual Directors was evaluated by the Board seeking inputs from
all the Direciors, The criteda for performance evaluation of the Board included aspects like Board
pompesition and structura, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning el The
criteria for performance evaluafion of Committees of the Board included aspects like composition of
Commillees, effectiveness of Committee meetings etc. The criteria for performance evaluation of the
individual Direclors included aspects on coniribution to the Board and Committee meefings like
preparedness on the Bsues lo be discussed, meaninghul and constructive contribution and inputs in
meatings elc,




Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors for the financial Year 2024-25:

In accordance with the principles of good corporale governance and i line with the Company's
remunaration policy, the Man-Executive Direclors of the Company do nol receive any remuneralion for
their services on the Beard,

Far the financial year 2024-25, the Non-Execufive Directors have not been paid any sifting fees,
commission, stock options, or any other form of compensation or benefils, whether in cash or kind, for
attending Board mestings, Commillae meetings, or for any other senvices rendered in thelr capacity as
Cireciors of the Company.

The Company acknowledges the valuable guidance and oversight provided by the Non-Executive
Direciors in steering the Company's sirategic direction and ensuring effective governance, even thaugh
they have voluntarily foregone any remunerafion.

This policy of non-remuneration reflects the commitrment of the Nan-Executive Directors to uphold high
slandards of athical and fiduciary responsibility, aligning with the long-term inlerests of the Company
and its stakeholders.

Remuneration paid to Executive Directors

During the financial year 2024-25, no remuneration was pald to the Executive Direclors of the
Company. This inclades:

« Salary
Perquisites and allowances
Commissian
Parformance-knked incentives
Stock options or any other form of compensation

The Executive Directors have not drawn any remunesafion, either from the Company for the said
financial year

This disclosure is made in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and
relevant corporale gavemnance requirements. It also reflects the Exacutive Direclors’ commitment fo the
long-term goals and sustainability of the Company without drawing financial benefit in thesr execulive
capacity during the reponting period.

. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

Composition and attendance at Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee Meeting:

in compliance with Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulaticns, the Board has constituted the Stakeholders

Relationship Committee inter alia, to consider and review the complaints received from sharehokders.
Detail of share transfers ! transmissions, if any, approved by the Commitlee are placed at the Beard
Meetings from time to time




The Company’'s Stakeholders’ Relationship Commitiee mel 2 (Twa) fimes during the financial year
ended March 31, 2025 viz, May 27, 2024 and July 30, 2024,

The: following table presents the details of atlendance at the Stakeholders' Relationship Commitiee
meetings held during the year ended March 31, 2025:

_Members i, Designation & Category | Mo. of Meetings Attended
Mrs. Chanchal Rungta Chairpersan, Non-Exscutive & 2
MNon-independent Direcior

Ms. Tripty Modi Member, Non-Executive & Non- 2
Independent Director

Mr. Jayanta Chowdhury Member, Mon-Execufive - 1
Independent Diractor

Company Secrelary acts as the Secretary of the Commitiee and is the Compliance Officer of the
Company.

Mrs. Chanchal Rungta, Chairperson of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committes attended the previous
Annual General Meefing held on September 26, 2024,

The brief terms of reference of the Stakeholders' Ralationship Committee are as follows:

a. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed eniity including complaints related fo
transter | transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual repor, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue
of new | duplicate cerfificates, general meetings etc.;

b. Revew of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholdars;

c. Review of adherence to the senvice standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of varous services
being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent;

d. Review of the various measures and inifiatives taken by Ihe listed entity for reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants / annual reports |/ statutory nofices
by the shareholders of the Company; and

e. Camying out any other function as prescribed under the Listing Requlations, Companies Act, 2013 and
the rutes and regufations made thereunder, each as amended or other applicable law,

SEBI Complaints Redressal System (SCORES)

The invesior complaints are processed in a centralised weh-based complaints redressal system,



The sabent features of this system are ceniralised database of all complainis, online upload of Actian
Taken Reports (ATRs) by the concemed companies and onfing viewing by investars of actions Laken on
the complaint and its curmant status.

Your Company has besn registered on SCORES and makes every effor 1o resolve all investor complaints
recesved through SCORES or otherwise within the statutary time limit fram the receipt of the complaint.

However, SEBI vide its Circudar Mo, SEBIHOOIAEIGRD/PICIRA2022/0150 dated November 07, 2022
has mandated the investors fo first take up their grisvances for redressal with the Campany, through their
designated persons { officials who handle issues relating lo comgliance and redressal of nvesior
grievances. In case, the Company falls 1o redress the complaint within the statulory timedine, the invesior
may then file his / her complaint in SCORES.

No Shares are ling in Demat Suspense Account | unclaimed suspenss Accounl, Hence, the disclosure
af the same is not applicable.

There were no shareholder complaints / requests pending at the beginning of the year. Alsa, no
sharehaldes complaints [ requests have been received dunng the year.

Exclusive e-mall id for Investor Grievances: htips./ikfiicl.com/index himl.
Online Dispute Resolution (OOR) Portal

SEBI, by consolidating its Circular having No. SEBUVHO/QIAEQIAE_IAD-1PICIRI2023/131 dated July
31, 2023, read with the comigendum cum amendment Circular having No. SEBHOICHAEICIAE_|AD
1PICIR/20237135 dated Auvgust 4, 2023 and amendment Circular having Mo, SEBIVHC/OLAEQIAE _IAD-
WPICIR/2023191 dated Decamber 20, 2023 has issued a Master Circular having No.
SEBUHOYOIAE/QIAE _IAD-VP/ICIR2023195 dated December 28, 2023 on "Onfine Resolution of
Dizpules in the Indian Secunties Market”,

Through the said Circulars, SEBI has established a common QDR Porlal ko hamess online cordliation
and arbitration for resolufion of disputes in the Indian Securties Market

Post exhausting the cption to resolve grievances with the RTA | Company directly and through existing
SCORES platform, the investors can inifiale dispule resciufion through the COOR  Portal
(https:fiemartodr infloginy and fhe same can also be accessed through the Company's websile
hitpsfkficl combndex.himl,

General Body meetings

Location and time, where last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) were hald:

Venue Date Time | Special Resolutions passed
Registered Office | 26.09.2024 | 10:00am. | -
Registered Office | 22.09.2023 10:00 am. | Re-appointment of Mr. Avi Lunia (DIN:

OTE8T36E0) as  Mom  Executive |
| Independent Director .




Registerad Office ' Shifting of Registered office of the |
Company from the Slate of Assam fo |
the State of West Bengal, under the |
jurisdiction of Regisirar of Companies,
Kaolkata and conseguent anendmenis
io the Memarandum of Associabion of |
| the Company

Deetails of Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held during the year,

Mo Extra-Ordinary General Mesting was heid during the financial year 2024-25. Also, as on dale, no
Extra-Crdinary General Meeting is proposed o be held

Details of special resolution passed through postal ballot:

There was no special resolution passed through postal ballol dunng the financial year 2024-25. Also, as
at date, no Special Resolution is proposed 10 be passed through Postal Ballot,

6. Disclosures
. Statutery Compliance
The Company has complied with rules and requiations prescribed by the Stock Exchanges,
Securities and Exchange Board of India and any other statutory authonty refating fo capital
markel

. Related Party Transactions

The Company has adopied the Relaled Parly Transaction Policy, which & avallable on iis
website and can be accessed at web link Atlps khel.comiindex.himl,

The details of all significant transactions with refated parfies are periodically placed before the
Audit Committea. The Company has entered into related party transactions as set gut in notes
to accounts, which do not have patential conflict with the interasts of the Company at large

Subsidiary

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associale, or joint veniure company as on March
31, 2025, Accordingly, the requirements relating o consclidated financial statements and refated

disclosures are not applicable for the financial year 2024-25.

. Vigil Mechanism | Whistle Blower Policy

In line with Companies Acl, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated Vigil
Mechanism [ Whislle Blower Paolicy to report concems about unethical behaviour, achual or
suspected incidenis of fraud or violahion of Code of Conduct thal could adversely impact the
Company's operations, business performance and / or reputation, in a secure and cenfidential
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manner, The Company has also provided the complainant direct access to the Chairman of the
Audit Committea. Further, no personnef have been danied access to the Audit Commities.

The: Vigil Mechanism Poficy has been placed on the website of the Company and web-ink therato

[5: hitpsfedficl comindes himl

Compliance with Mandatory and Non-Mandatory Requirements

The Company has comglied with all the mandatory requirerents of the Listing Regulations, to

the extant applicable.

Non-Mandatory Requirements

Particulars

The Board

Mon-Executive Chairperson may be entitled o maintain a
chairperson's office at the listed enfity’s expense and also
allowed reimbursament of expenses incurred in performance of
his { her duties

Shareholders’ Right

A half-yearty declaration of fnancial performance including
summary of significant events in last six-manths, may be sent to
each household of shareholders

Modified opinion(s) in audit report

The Ested enfity may move fowards a regime of financial
statements with unmodified opinion

Compled, fthere are no
gualificaficn in the Audil Report

| Separate posts of Chairperson and the Managing Director
or the Chief Executive Officer

The listed enfity may appoint separate persons to the post of the
Chairperson and the Managing Cireclor or the Chief Exscutive
Officer. such that the Chairperson shall

a. be anon-exaecutive director; and

b. nat be related to the Managing Director or the Chief Executive
Officer ag per the definition of the term “relative” defined under
the Companies Act, 2013

The Chairman of the Company 5
Mon-Executiva, Indepandeant
Dwector,

Reporting of internal auditor




| The internal auditor may report directly 1o the Audit Committes

B. Non-Compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report of sub-paras (2) to (10) of
Part C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations

There are no non-compliances of any requirements of Corporate Governance Repon of sub-paras (2)
1o (10) of Parl C mentioned in Schedule V of the Listing Regulations.

I accordance with Reguiation 26(6) of the Listing Regulations, we hereby confimm that no employee
mcluding Key Managenal Personne! or Director or Promoter of the Company has entered into any
agreement for himself / herself or on behalf of any other person, with any sharehaolder or any other third
party with regard to compensation or profit shanng in connection with dealings in the securilies of the
Company

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

The financial stalements are prepared on accrual basis of accountng in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) nofified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial
statements have aiso bean preparaed in accordance with the relevant presentation requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013.

. Model Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Team

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable to all its director's and members of the Senior
Management, which is in consonance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations. The said code
is avaidable on the website of the Company and can be accessed through web-link:
hilpa:klicd. com/indes. hbml,

All tive Board Members and members of the Senior Management have affirmed compliance with Code
of Conduct of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025.

Directors' Responsibility Statemant

The draft Directors’ Responsibdity Statement signed by Mr. Chand Ratan Modi. Managing Director
which is included in the Board's Report for the financial year 2024-25 has been reviewed by the Audit
Committee at its meeting held on May 16, 2025,

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report

In terms of Regulation 78 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositonies and Paricipants)
Regulations, 2018, Reconcliation of Share Capital Audit is carried out on a guartery basis by a
Practicing Company Sacretary with a view to reconcile the total admitled capital with National Securifies
Depository Limited ("NDSL") and those held in physical form with the: total issued, paid up and listed
capital of the Company. The audit report, inter alia, confims that the Register of Members is duly
updated and that demat / remat requests were confirmed within stipulated time elc. The said report is
also submitted lo the slock Exchange.




Risk Management Policy

The Company has in place Risk Management System which takes care of risk idenfification,
assessment and mitigation. There are no risks, which in the opinien of the Board threaten the existence
of the Company

Code for Prevention of Insider Trading

The Company has adopled a code of conduct to reguiate, monitor and repert trading by insiders for
prevention of Insider Trading in the shares of the Company. The code, iner-ali, prohibits purchase /
sale of shares of the Company by Directors and designated person whik in possession of unpublished
price gensitive information in redation to the Company and during the pericd when the Trading Window
is closed.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

a. Mumber of Complaints filed during the financial year - NIL
b. Number of Compilaints disposed of during the financial year - Not Applicable
. Number of Complainis pending as on end of the inancial year - Nat Applicable

. Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of loans and advances in the nature of loans to
firms [ companies in which directors are interested by name and amount

Not Applicable, as the Company did not provide any loans and advances in the nature of loans 1o firms
| companies in which derectors are inferested.

. Detalls of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place of incorporation
and the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such subsidiaries

Mot Applicable, as the Company does not have any mabesial subsidiary

. Means of Communication

Website: The Company's website hbips.(kficlcomindexhtml containg, inter afia, the updated
imformation pertaining to quarterly, hatf- yearly and annual financial resulls, ennual reports, and
shareholding pattam, important annourcaments. The said information is svailabie in a user Irendly and
downlcadabie form.

Financial Results: The quarterly, hall-vearly and annual financial results of the Company are submitied
ta Caleutta Stock Exchange afier approval of the Board of Directors of the Company,

Annual Report containing inter alia Financial Stalement, Board's Report, Auditors’ Repent, Corporate
Governance Report & circulated to the Members and others enfitled thereto and s also available on
wedsite of the Company hiips:kfic comfindex html.
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Uploading on stock Exchange: The quarterly resulis, quarterly comphiancas and all ather corporate
communicaions lo the Stock Exchanges are fled electronically on Listing Centre for the Stock
Exchangea.

19. General Shareholder's information:

Annual Ganeral Hﬂ-ﬂtiﬂg

Date, time and venue

Financial Year

The 38" Annual General Meeting |AGM) |
of the Company will be held on Thursday,
August 28, 2025 at 09:00 a.m. [ST.

Financial Year is April 01 o March 31 ol the |
follawing year

Quarterly results will be declared as per the following fentative schedule:

Financial reperting for the quarter ending
June 30, 2025

| By the firsl fortnight of August, 2025

Financial reporting for the half year ending
September 30, 2025

By the first fortnight of November, 2025

Financial reporting for the quarter ending
December 31, 2025

Financial repﬂrtlng for the year Endmg
March 31, 2026 o
Dates of En-ulc Closure
Record date for Dividend

| By the end of May, 2026

By the firsl fortnight of February, 2026

:'Tﬁuggst 22 2025 1o August 28, 2025

N.A

Dividend Payment Date

N.A

Listing on Stock Exchanges & Payment of
Listing Fees

Stock Code | Symbol

| Sinck Symbal: KIFCL

' Your Company's shares are fisted on:

Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India
206(4), 2nd foos, Piramal Agastya
Corporate Park, Kamani Junction, LBS
Road, Kurla (West), Mumbai — 400070,

Your Company has paid the annual listing
fee to the exchange.

Registrars and Transfer Agents

Miche Technologies Pyt Lid
34 Auckland Place, 7th Floor,
Room Mo, TA & 7B, Kolkata 700 017

Share Transfer System

In {erms of Regulation 40(1} of the Listing
Reguiations, as amended, transfer of
secunities has been effected only in
dematerialized form  with effect from
January 24, 2022 Further, SEBl wde its
circular dated January 25, 2022, mandated
that all service requests for issue of
duplicate cerlihcate, claim from unclaimed
suspense account, renewal [ exchange of
| securities  cerbficate.  endorsement,

| subdivision { splitting [ consofidation of




Address for Correspondence

cerfificate, transmission and fransposition
which were allowed in physical form should
be processed in demateralised form only.

The necessary forms for the above request
are avaitable on the website of the
Company at htlps./fkicl comfindex himl.
5, Gorky Temace, 2nd Floor, Kokata -
700017

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

Shares held in Demateralized form in
NSDL: 1,15.00 400

Share hekd in Physical form1,01,250

Electronic Clearing Service (ECS)

Members are requested o update their
bank account details with their respective
depository participants (for shares held in
fhe electronic form) or wrte o the
Company's FRegistrars and  Transfer
Agents (for shares held in the physical
form, if any)

Investor Complaints to be addressed to

Registrars and Transfer Agents or
Company Secretary, at the addresses
mertioned earlier

risk and hedging activities

Mot applicable

The Company does not have :nrﬁi‘ﬁﬁﬁilir
price risk

List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity
. along with any revisions thereto during the
 relevant financial year, For all debt
| instruments of such entity or any fixed
| deposit programme or any scheme or
proposal of the listed entity involving
mobilization of funds, whether in India or
‘abroad

Not applicable, as the Company did nat
igsue any debf inslruments or any fixed
deposit programme ar any schema or
propasal mvolving mobilization of funds, in
India or abroad.

Disclosure of certain type of agreements
binding listed entities as per clause 5A of
paragraph A of Part A of Schedule Il of the
Listing regulations

There @ no  agreement impacting |
managemant or contral of the Company or

imposing any restrichon or credate any

liability upon the Company.

By arder of the Board of Directors,

Date: 16.05.2025
Place:

— e hm
Chand Ratan Modi 7
Managing Director _r’-’f?-_."f'”’
DIN: 00343685 | =/
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DECLARATION BY THE DIRECTOR ON CODE OF CONDUCT AS REQUIRED
BY SCHEDULE V OF THE LISTING REGULATIONS

Az required under Regulation 34{3) read with Parl D of Schedule V of SEBI (Lising Oblgations and
Disclesure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, | hereby declare that all the Directors of the Board and
Senior Management Personnel of Kamini Finance and Investment Co. Lid (the ‘Company’} have affirmed,
compliance with provisions of the applicable Code of Conduct of the Company during the financial year
ended 31sf March, 2025,

For Kamini Finance and Investment Company Lid

R e MR See ¥

Chand Ratan Modi
Managing Director
DIN: 00343685

Data: 16.05.2025
Place: Kaolkata




JOINT CERTIFICATION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Pursuant fo Raguiabon 17(5) read with Schedule If Part 8 of the SEBI (LODR} Reguiations, 2015)

We, Chand REatan Modi, Managing Direclor and Ms. Kirtl Modi, Chiaf Financial Officer cartify that:

1. We have reviewed financial stetements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
and hat io the best of our knowledoe and balisf:

(] These staterments do not contain any materisty untnie statement or omit any mateérial fact nor
contan statements that mioht be misheading.

[} Thesa staterments prasent true and fairview of the Company's affass and are in compliance with
the exisfing accounting stendards, applicable kaws and regulations.

These are, to the best of our knowledge and belied, no transactions antarad into by the Company durng
the year, which are freedutent, illegal orin viekation of the Comgpany’s code of conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing ard maintaining intermal controfs, we have evalualed the
effactiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and we have disclosad to the suditors and
the Audit Commities, deficiencies in the design or operalion of the inlernal condrolz, if any, of which wa
are aware and the steps that we hawve taken to reclify the identified deficiencies.

Wea have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever appicable, o the Auditors and Audit
Commitiee:

cignifizant changes, if any, in the intemal condrol over financial reporting during the year,

Significant changes, i any. in the accounting policies made during the year and that the same has
been disclozed in the nofes to the financkal statements, and

Instances of significant fraud of which we have becoms aware and the involvement therein, § any, of
the: managemant or an employes having significant rok in the Company’s inlemal controd Systam
over financial reporting

For Kamini Finance and Investment Company Ltd v_;: ‘I"*"f)'r

VS . N g s T
Chand Ratan Modi AT Kirti Modi
Managing Director Al 1 Chiof Financial Officer
DIN; 00343685 1 ' PAN: ADYPMA210L

Date: 16.05, 2025
Place: Kolkata




S. MANDAL & CO. 2613, SEVEN TANKS LANE
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS DUM DUM JN.
KOLKATA -T00 030
Phone:  2356-6768
2546-3269
Fax : (033) 25463269
E-Mail : 5_mondal cofmyahoo.co.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of KAMINI FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMPANY LTD.
Report on the Standalone Finaneial Statemenis

Opinion

We have awdited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of KAMINI FINANCE
AND INVESTMENT COMPANY LTD. (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at 3lst March 2025, and the statemetit of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income/{expense), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash flows for the vear
then ended. and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of Material Accounting
policy Information and other cxplanatory information (*the Financial Statements™)in our
opimion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid  Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting pranciples generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
3 st March 2025, and its loss and other comprehensive expense, changes in equity and its cash
fows for the vear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinien

We conducted our aundit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (5As) specified under section 143(10% of the Act. ODur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor 's Responsibilities for the Awdit of the Financial
Siatements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (1CAl) together with the
ethical reguirements that are relevant o our audit of the Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, amd we have fulfilled ocur other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the [CAl's Code of Ethics. We
belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
far our audil opinion on the Financial Statements.

Keyv Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most Significance
in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current penod. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon. and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters desenibed below o be the key audit matters to be communicated
I OUE TEPOLL.




Auditor’s Response

We have assessed the procedure of sale and purchase of
investments including vear end valuation, We have obtained all
sources of documents for valuation of unquoted shares and its
subsegquent sale.

Serial Key Audit
i O
I Valuation of
Investment
.5 Revenue
Recognition and
Provision for

We have reviewed the procedure of revenue recognition in relation
to interest imcome. Mo income has been recorded for NPA assets,
The loans which have become NPA, necessary provisions are

doubtfil debts made in the books.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis. the Board's report including annexure to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and

Sharcholders information. butl does not include the standalone Financial Statements and our
Auditors Report thereon.

Chur opinion on Standalone Financial Stalements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form ol assurance or conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements jour responsibility is to read
the Other Information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or other information obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appear to be matenially misstated. I, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is o material misstatement of this Other Information; we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Manazement's Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect 1o the preparation of these Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total
comprehensive income and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, This
responsibility also includes maimntenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting Irauds and other irregulanties; selection and application of approprate accounting
plicies: making judgments and estimates thot are reasonable and prudent; and design.
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant o the
preparation and presentation of the Financial Stalements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Finaneial Stalements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ahility to continue as a going concermn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends o liquidate
the Company or (o cease operations, or has no realistic altermative but to do so. The Board of
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

YT
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Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Chur objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due o faud or emor. and o issee an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audil conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements c¢an arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggrepate, they could repsonably be expected o influence the
economic decisions of users laken on the basis of these Financial Statements.,

As part of an audit in accerdance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throwghout the audit. We also;

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that 15 sufficient and approprigle to provide a basis for
our opinion. The nisk of not detecting & matenal missiatement resulting from fraud 15
higher than for one resulting from crmror. as frand may involve collusion, forgery.
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o  Obtam an understanding of inlernal control relevanl 1o the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Ki) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinien on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the gomg concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exisis related 1o evenis or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required o draw atention in our auditor’s report 1o the related disclosures in the
Financial Statements or, if’ such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
A5 8 going Concem.

s [Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and comtent of the Financial Statements,
mcluding the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

o DMdateriality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone Financial Staterments that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the ecomemic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone Financial Statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative matenality and qualitative factors in (1) planning the
scope of our awdit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (1) to evaluate the
effect of any identified missiatemenis in the standalone Financial Statements,

We communicale with those charged with governance regarding, among other maiters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. R
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and o communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safepuards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”), as amended,
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the Annexure-A a siatemeni on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(2} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which o the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit

fb) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books,

fc) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt wath by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

(d) In our opimon, the aforesaid Financial Stalements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2013, as amended.

() The observations on financial transactions do oot reveal any matters which have any
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

(fy n the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 314t March,
2025 from being appainted as & director in terms of Section 164 (2] of the Act.

(g) With respect 1o the adequacy of the miternal financial controls over Anancial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer Lo our separate
Report in Annexure-B.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rufes, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

1, The Company does not have any pending hitigations which would impact its financial
poaition.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracis for
which there were any material foreseeable losses,

. There were no amounts due which were required to be tra the Imvestor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

6%



iv. () The management has represented that, 1o the best of its knowledge and belief, no

¥.

w1,

(H, . Dey)
Partner

Membership Mo, 050190 :
UDIN: X50501908400KR £355

funds{which are matenal either mdividually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premiwm or any other
sources of kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermedianies™), with the understanding. whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indireetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficianes™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneticiaries:

ib) The management has represented. that, to the best of its knowledge and beliet, no
fundsiwhich are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the company from any person(s) or entitv(ies), including foreipn entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(). Based on audit procedures which we considerad reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 1o believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (1) of Rule 1 1{e), as provided under (a)
and (b} above, contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention
of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining s books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the yvear
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our zudit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being lampered
with.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requircments for record retention.

For 5, MAMNDAL & 0.
Chartered Accouniants
{Firm's Registration No_ 314138E)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 16¥ May, 2025
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ANNEXURE - “A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (1) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Repulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Kamini Finance And Investment Company Ltd. of
even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course
of audit, we state that:

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
guantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment ["PPE") and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

(k) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which all
PPE are verified in a phased manner, In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification
Is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In our
opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable
properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) In our opinion and according to the informaton and explanations given to us, the
Company has not revalued its PPE during the year.

(e] According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company. no proceedings have been initiated during the
year or are pending against the Company as at 31st March 2025 for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988 as amended in
2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. {a) The Company is in the business of providing loans and does not have any physical
Inventories. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3{ii){a) of the Order is not applicable to it

(b) During the year, the Company has not availed any working capital limit from Banks or
Financial Institutions on the basis of security of Loans.

Itk (2} Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the provision of
clause 3(iit)(a] of the Order is not applicable to it

(b} The Company, being a MNon-Banking Financial Company ('NBFC’), registered under
provisions of RBI Act, 1934. In our opinion and according te the information and
explanations given to us, the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the
terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and
guarantees, provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's
interest.

(c) The Company. being a Non-Banking Financial Company ['NBFC'), registered under
provisions of RBI Act, 1934 and rules made thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with

provisions of the said Act/Rules, particularly, the [pc ecognition, Asset Classification
and Provisioning Norms, monitors repayments f p pal and {ayment of interest by its
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customers as stipulated. In our opinion and according to the imformation and explanations
given to us, in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and in cases where
repayment of principal and payment of interest is not received as stipulated, the cognizance
thereol is taken by the Company, According to the information and explanation made
available to us, reasonable steps are taken by the Company for recovery thereof.

(d] The Company, being a NBFC, registered under provisions of REl Act, 1934 and rules
made  thereunder. in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of the said Act/Rules,
particularly, the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms, monitors
and report total amount overdue including principal and/or payment of interest by its
customers for more than 90 days. In cases where repayment of principal and payment of
interest is not received as stipulated, the cognizance thereof is taken by the Company.
According to the information and explanation made available to us, reasonable steps are
taken by the Company for recovery thereok

(e) Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans Accordingly, the provision of
clause 3{lii}{e) of the Order is not applicable to it

() Based on our audit procedures, according to the information and explanation made
available to us, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans
gither repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during
the year.

iv. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, made investments or provided guarantees in contravention of provisions of
Section 185 of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186[1] of
the Act; the other provisions of Section 186 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits from public during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at
March 31, 2025 and hence the provisions of the paragraph 3(v) of the Order s not applicable
to the Company;

vi. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) section 148 of the Act for the business activities carried out by the Company.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3{vi] of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vil. {a) In our opinien and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues relating to
amounts deducted faccrued In the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employvees’ state insurance, income tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services
Tax, duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31
March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

viil. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
hasis of our examination of the records of the Company, we confirm that we have not come
across any transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961).




ix. (@) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings to financial institutions, banks, government and dues to debenture holders or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority or any other lender.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report
that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

[d] The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its associate. The Company does not have any subsidiaries or joinl
ventures.

¥ [a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not raised any moneys by way
of public offer during the current financial year.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made preferential
allotment of equity shares during the year.

xi. {a] During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company
or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(b} In our opinion and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, no report
under sub-section {12} of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT -
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.,

(€] According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no whistle blower
complaints received during the vear by the Company.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xiil. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

xiv. {a] In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

av. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3({xv) efthe Order is.not applicable to
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the Company and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

avi. (2] The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and the Company has obtained the required registration.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtaining a valid
CoR from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(c] According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company ('CIC *) as defined under the Regulations by the Reserve Bank of India.

xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses during the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year covered by our audit.

wviil, During the year, no change in statutory auditors of the Company have taken place.

xix. According to the information and explanations glven to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, along with details provided in Note 28 to the Financial statements which
describe the maturity analysis of assets & liabilities other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report indicating that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viahility of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. The Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with regards to Corporate Social
Responsibility are not applicable to the company during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)
of the Order is not applicable,

xxi.The Company is not required to prepare any Consolidated Financial Statement,
accordingly Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For SMANDAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 31118BBE

(H. C. Dey
Fartner

Membership No, 050190
uum: fﬁ:pfm?"&:wm;{}ﬁ RE&SES

Place: Kolkata
Date: 16" May, 2025

b8



ANNEXURE - "B* TO AUDITORS" REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(2) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("The Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KAMINI FINANCE AND

INVESTMENT COMPANY LTD as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Director of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intermal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of
Intermal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detectlon of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinfon on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Hote') and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical reqguirements and plan and
perfarm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Cur audit invelves performing procedures ta obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judogement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or errar,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained |s sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system aver financial reparting.

Contd.
TTANDAL g™
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting i5 a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reperting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
caompany’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that-

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and

(3} provide reasanable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of upauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the companys assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Bacause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Alsa, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reparting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadeguate because of changes In conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deternorate,

Opindon

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financlal reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on “the Internal control over financial reporting
eritaria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For S.MAMDAL & CO.
Chartered Acoounbants
FRM, 3141B8E

(H.C.DEY)

Partner

Membership Mo.: 050190

upin: 2 5058 | goar oK REZ 55

Kolkata
Date: 16 May, 2025
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Hodes bo the Financial Hatemants for the year ended 0=t March, 2028
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Acdrancs 0 Relaled Partas
Acbran i et H =
Ealanses with Gorvarimiant AL celian *
Bseis aoquiied N salistaction of debi s .
Cimar Aecahplies L ] B8 MR
88,825 37,841
* rEpiesenis pamnce ieg wih Revenug Authoritios
B invenloriey [ Ba i 000°
&g at As al
e st March, 2025 Hsi March, 3024
Siogh <10 - Tracn 47 1M 4T 121
Torkai 47,121 AT, 121
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HAMINI FIMANCE & IRVESTMEMT COMPANY LIMITED

Hates to the Financial Statemants for the year ssded 1958 March, 2025
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Finuscal Aaseis and Listiises al Fooc| I} — P “ANE
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KA FINANCE & INVESTRENT COMPANY LIMITED
Fiotes o the Financial S1a8smels (e he yadr ended 51s Masch, 2055

Note : 10 Trada Payaties

Trade Payables ageing
schedula: As &l 31st

Ha&rEh, HZ
| Ra. bs 03]
Fartculirs Chrietandirag for dndlosring porinds froen dus data of pagment
Lt i 1 i 1.3 yuifa 3.5 piniin Mo thin 1 yees Teestl
i1 WSMIE
iy Ethara 212 17 z st aEs
|||u1 Mispided dues. MSME
||r|l;| Ehija et duims - {Ahars
Teade Pipalies ageing
schodube: &n sl 3ixt
March, 2034
| P in 0RO
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|| WERE
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HAMRI FIMANCE & MVESTHERT COMPAKY LBAITED
Hodes te the Financial Statemants for the year sated 31at March, 2005

{ e, in ‘00
As W As o
sk March, 20ZE J15k March, 2024
Imteiesl Arociued bl ot due on Bommwngs ; :
Iebe el Soerusd ared dus on Borersing ' 16,077 #5768
Inlaeal Aociued Dul not dua on Of@ans - -
U Civioanda H
Awiarm :
tha comwpany hes nok provaded inborest om Beamowing from the party with which Bomowing &= inlemed fme,
13, Prowishons | Fea, b Oadir
g L]
Fimrin 1%L March, 2075 J151 Martss, 2k
Provigion for amederpes beoalls
o0 50
Total 00 50
A4, Drhar Mon-Francisl lighditin [ Fe in 00K
Particul : By e B at
Eundry kabiitses (s Capinisotot) Accourt
Tempaary Dwardiat ; -
Tlorbu by L et &* - 5.3
CHbar 2 3a7 11,118
= 2407 1,177 |
* Repeesarnty 106 dndustid ared bl KARINTFIRANTE & INVESTMENT CO. LTO.
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HARINI FIMANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Hotes to the Fimancial Stabemsnts For il yaar snded 3188 March, 2025

1E Eguity Share Capital
{ Rs. in 000}
— A% a1 3131 March, 2025 A% a1 3131 Maroh, 2024
ey No. of Shares = No, of Shares Ha
uthorised
Equity Shans=. R 105 pai valis
per share 1,20 10,000 0,20, 10D 120 10,0006 150,100
IEF TR 130,100
lagsued and swrhscribad
Eﬁ‘;‘:" . p A0 par vola Do 12001850  1.20,018.50 1,.20,01,650 1,20,016.50
Fully Paid-up
Eﬁ':‘ Ghanes. Re '":"""a”a““ pear | 20,01 580 1,20,017 1.20.51,850 120,047
1,20,017 1,30,017

151 Feconciliation of the Number of Equity Ehares cutstanding
The iecnsliation of tha numbar of aguity shames aolslanding and tho caresponding amourt theseed, a5 &1 ihe Baans

Shesl date is sal oul below

{ A&, i\ "000)
A at Ael March, 2025 Ag ot Mal March, 2024
[Eauity Shares Na. of Shares i Wo. of Shares s
i the begmning of the yaar 1.20.01,650 1. 2001650 1,20.01,650 120,08y
Al Faa ped duing 1ha yoar
A e end of (e i | 20401 BSD 120,017 1.20001,850 120,017

16.2 Rights, preferomces and restrictions in respoct of each class of ahars

The Cornparsy's auilicdissd captal conaists of classes of ghares, refacnad 1o B3 Eqully Shanis and Rs 100- rach . Each
Faaldar of oury shanes = enified o ane yobs per shins,

The Comparry declams and pave dividend i Indian rupess. The dividand, | @y, proposed by the Board of Direcloes is
sufijscl o the approwal of te shareholders 0 the ensuing Annual Genedal Mesating

in ihe everi of Bpadatian of dhe Company, the hoiders of equity shares will be enftified fo receive any of T femainig
asesle of M Company, aller dsinbulion of fll prafereniial amorinis, The disimbeian vl be in propoion o e rumbier
of equity shares Bk by the sharehoidess

15.3 Shares allothd o€ Mully padd-up withoal paymant hdng rocedead In cashiby way of bonus shares (durisg 8

years precoding 398t Maroh, 2025)

Tren Company has nof issoed any shames wibhoul paymen] baing received i cash)’ by vy of borus shares since 2075

6

154 Deiails of Shareholders holding more than 3% of the equity shares each, are aed oul below:

As at 315t March, 2025 As at 3st March, 2024

Narmw-of the sharshokiers No.of Shares | . “‘I "‘: fing | Mo- 01 Shares | % of Sharsholding

Hotahaoli Wood Producls Lid 17, 37,004 ‘Ij_:l-?‘ 17,37, 000 14.47
Marth Eaxstern Publishing &

N ties 16,009,100 13.41 16,00, 100 1341

Sudhiv Jain 10,42,300 5.60 10,42, 300 .50
Gulmohur Trading Privatbe

Limed 13,55, 800 1. 30 13,55,600 11.30
Maurya Trading Company

Limbied 22,508,500 18.82 2,568,500 18.82

Total 40,502,700 8668 80,02.700 56,68

 RAWINIFINANCE BJWVESTURAT RO, LT0
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HAMIMI FIMANCE AND INVESTHENT COMEANY LIMITED
Hatas fo the Financial Statements for tv year anded Jist March, 2025

16, Crthar Equity
[ A= im ‘0o

Particalas Mt March, 315t March,
2028 7024

Special Rosarve (pursuant ta Section 489G of the Raseria Bank
jof Inia Act, 1934)

Dpening balance a5y anr
Add- Trarsder from retained @amings

ICinsng batance 257 asy

(Income Tax Eiwcial Resorve [croatsd pursuant o Sociion :
BN viiih of the Income Tax Act, 1961}

Chparing dalnree -
Al Transfer fron retained sarnings = .

Cloging balanca 2 "

Gapital Ressrve
Opaning balance

Cloging balance = o
Securibies Pramism Resarvg
Chpening balance

Clesing balance . i
Enrld'ﬂlbmm Redemption Ressres
Cipening balanep

Ao Transler Inam relznsd eamrgs

Less: Tranaler o retnined aarnings. on ropaymant of
BreniDebaniure

Clixtarig halares _ -
Genaral Reservn
Chpaning palance
(iosing batarcs [ ' ! ]
Equhj-lml.mrr;inu through Other Comprakensive Inooms -
Lpaning balance i1,480) 1,45
Add: Addiions during the year {20
Less: Transfer fo refained eamings {nat of L)
Cleaing balanca 1,483 i1480)
Retaingd Eamings
Opening balance (78,45 (73,443
Akl Piodit for the yoar {1,673 (3,368
Ada Cther Comprahensve ncoma (med of fuod

A come Tax agjusimend for Earliar yasrs = s
Add: MAT Cradil Ersifemant of sarfier years
Addf Lese: Appropriaticdas

Trarstemed o Special Reserve z .
Carperage dhvidend sax

Todal appropriations z £

T ==l = =

Cleming bakanca {78,175} {'.HB,IHJ-

= crmneemnel s Bk erventcoiza, T
féﬂ«i"ﬁh-‘:'-""' o] CELTD e e N e el
kAN F

WD eas éﬁﬁfa
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1l Special Reseree:

Trangfiar of 20% of ha proft aflar bax bafore m-measymement Adiiskmenls an irengibon fo ind AS, f any, 0 Ihe slutilory MesRreas i
Bronrdance with the provision of Seclion 4545 of the REI At 1534,

Tha cenditions amd restractions for distribution attached to Speial Resorve is m Toilows:

ko appropeiation of any sum from (ke resorse kind shail be mada by the Gompany escepl tor I pumpnse 5 iy be spacifiad by jhe BRI
from |H11am|rr-;mauwmdﬂamhnsmmwmt-aﬁﬂlmﬂmmN%Bmmrmmhm: of gisch withgrwal REd
PEY, M any parlcoer case and for sufficenl cawse being shown, extend the period af taenty poe days by such further pariod s T ilinks. &
o contdone any delay in making such repoit.

il Incame Tan Spacial Reseree

This reserwe has been rested pursuant 10 Section 36031} of tho Inioime Tax AL, 1061 and 2y wihireaal from sams wil be fasable 35 per
pErovedons of che income Ta Ack, 1981

[ Capital Rasarve

Thes reseree fepreseit s coptal insasment sibaidy recsinved and smount kirelersd bormancks vesrrant s aonion,

() Sacrint fes Pramiwinm;

This resure epresents tha presium on dasoe of shires and can be ullibed in accordance wilh the proisians of 1he Cornparius Act, 2013,

{w] S Debentune Redern phaon Rosor:

In merordanct with Rule 18{FI00I0H of the Companias [Share Capital and Debentures) Rides, 3014 read wiih Sickion T1[4) af the Companies Ao, 2015
the Company hus erested D oniy for redernption of public e of Non-Conwertible debentures (PACC).

[t el Rk rves

This msener include. amaurs rarstamed fom ngl bl as por prowigions of arstatils Companiag A4, 1966 ond Ressryes crealnd o6
Amskgamalion

vl Eguity Inatruments theough Other Compraheniive Incom

Thix. Rogerve represents the cumsalalive gains (el of Insse4] aising on ha changes i Fair Yaius af Equity Inslrurmerts meagueed al Fair
Valug mraugh Coher Comprabenshe Income, nat of smeunks reciaadilied, # any, o Retained Eamings when (hose insiroments ang
dispang off

|wiii] Retainnd Earnings:
Ihes reserve represanls e cumulative prosis of the Compary. Ths can be ublised in Accoedance: wEh |he pravisons of e Companies
A, 2013 KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT £0 3 LA

AL R
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EARIN FIRANCT & IWWESTRENT COMPANY LIMITED
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FAMINI OMANCE L IRVESTHENT COMPANY UMITED
Moiex o tha Financiyl Sbalmmenis for the pear eded 3100 Mach, 23338
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KAMINI FINANCE & INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3st March, 2025

5. Change in inventories of Stock-in-Trade

{ Rs. in '000")

al. Mo, Particulars .03, 2025 S1.03. 2024
1 Opening Siock 47,121 47,121
2 Clasing Stock 47 11 4713
Tokal - 1]

= —

Purchaze of Stock [ Rs. in 000"

8L Nao, Particulars 1.03.2025 31.03.2024

1 Purchase ol stack
Told :
M EINAREE 8 INVESTMENT 9. LTD
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